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monv in case of death lief ore the trial. They cannot be 
used, however, where the witness himself can be produced. 
See Evidences; Testimony; betters Rogatory.”

The reasons advanced by Mr. Rose against the admissibil­
ity of these depositions or statements on oatli are, iat the 
originals were not read over to the witnesses and signed bv 
them. Mr. Erwin, though, swears that the witnesses did 
read over their depositions, except one, who may not have 
read over all of his cross-examination by counsel for accused. 
Besides la'ing taken in a manner recognized by our law, the 
presumption nevertheless, is, that the originals are deposi­
tions in the United States 1 «‘cause they have been taken in 
a regular judicial proceeding, had before a competent officer 
without objection on the part of the accused, and have even 
been accepted and acted upon by the defendants in a pro­
ceeding in a court of justice in New York presided over by 
Judge Brown.

Unless section 10 of the Extradition Act would evidently 
declare that foreign evidence must l>e taken according to the 
law of the demanding country, I must hold that this is not 
required, and that for the admissibility of evidence, I must 
be governed by the Canadian law, and according to our law, 
the papers files! are copies of depositions on oath, and can 
be received although taken in the foreign country, because 
section 10 permits it.

The witnesses having testified in the presence of the ac­
cused, and having been cross-examined by them in a regular 
judicial proceeding the papers that are tiled before me must 
be termed copies of depositions, as distinguished from affi­
davits or statements on oath.

“ An affidavit is simply a declaration on oath in writing, 
sworn before an officer authorized to administer an oath. Its 
validity does not depend on the fact whether it is entitled 
in any cause or in any particular way.” Abbot’s Law Dic­
tionary.

“ An affidavit is a statement or declaration reduced to 
writing and sworn or affirmed to before some officer who has
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authority to administer an oath or affirmation............... the
deponent must sign the affidavit at the end. In the altseneo 
of j), rule of court or statute re<|uiriug it, if affiant’s name 
a|i|M'ars in an affidavit as the person who took the oath, the 
8td>seription to it by affiant i- not necessary." Bouvier’* 
Law Dictionary.

“ An affidavit is a voluntary declaration made in writing 
made l>cfore competent authority." Standard Dictionary.

“ A deposition is testimony legally taken on interrogato­
ries and reduced to writing for use as evidence in court.” 
Standard Dictionary.

“ A statement is a formal narration of facts fried as the 
foundation for judicial proceedings." Standard Dictionary.

“ An affidavit is a formal written or printed voluntary ex 
parte statement sworn to ls'fore an officer authoriz ’d to re­
ceive it. It differs from a deposition in this, that in the 
latter, the opposite party has an opportunity to cross-examine 
the witnesses, whereas an affidavit is always taken ex parte.” 
Bouvier’s Law Dictionary.

“ An affidavit is simply a declaration on oath in writing 
sworn to before some person who has authority under the 
law to administer the oath.” Harris vs. Lester, SO Illinois 
307.

In re Watts vs. Womack, 41 Ala. 005, it was held, that 
it was not essential to an affidavit that the name of the affiant 
should be subscribed. An affidavit is a sworn stateeinnt in 
writing.

It is evident by all the definitions cited above that the 
signature of an affiant in an affidavit is not required as an 
essential part. The signature is only for the object of iden­
tifying the affidavit, and if the name of the affiant is written 
in the affidavit by the person administering the oath, and 
certifying to it as being the person giving the affidavit, it 
is then properly identified.

Hr. Bose, one of the legal ex|ierts of the accused, said in 
his deposition : “ A deposition unsigned, or an affidavit un-
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filmed would be, in niv opinion, so more a de|H>.sitiun or an 
affidavit than a choque unsigned."

I liis opinion of Mr. Hose is contradicted by the definitions 
and decisions alsive referrecl to. Besides, Mr. Frank Lloyd, 
Assistant I . S. District Attorney fur the Southern District 
of New 1 ork, testified to the contrary view, and this 
opinion is supported by the following authorities:

Jackson v. Virgil. Johnson Hep. 5 10, Ison.
People V. Campbell, ss Hun. 547 (1MI5).
People v. Kenyon, 16 Hun. 195 (1878).
1 lie only authority cited by the defence to siip]»irl their 

pretension was the case of Hoke 14 ILL., p. 795, but I do 
not think they can derive any benefit from it. The same 
que -linn was not at issue as appears by the remarks of Hon. 
Hr. Justice Dugas, the learned Judge who decided it. One 
of the objections raised in that ease to the admissibility of 
the foreign evidence was, that the depositions taken in the 
foreign state did not show that the witnesses had lieen sworn 
before making their statement, and to support this preten­
sion tin' defence did not relv on any foreign statute, but 
they cited the Canadian statute. See. .40 of Chapter 40, 42- 
.4.4 X iet., which requires the Justice to administer the oath 
to a witness before he is examined. The decision of the 
learned Judge was that the extradition law did not exact 
this condition, and the depositions were admitted because 
they were on their face, statements on oath and duly authenti­
cated.

See Worms 22 Jyiwer Canada Jurist, p. 109.
Counhaye, Law Reports 8 Q.B.. p. 410.
Although T have not to apply the foreign law on this ques­

tion of the admissibility of the foreign evidence, even 
supposing the pretension of the defence be well founded, 
the evidence on this point, is conflicting, and according to 
the rules of evidence in preliminary investigations, the de­
fence could gain nothing by their objection, and if it was 
granted that the documents fried are not copies of deposi­
tions. which T do not admit, these documents arc at least
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above, and would Ik* sufficient a> such.

In the ease of Worms already cited, the late Ohief 
Justice Dorion, reiving exclusively on the Canadian extradi­
tion law, decided that depositions taken lief ore another 
magistrate than the one having issued the warrant, were ad­
missible when duly certified, liecause they came within 
the terms of the extradition act, and he added that “ deposi­
tions or statements on oath are synonymous terms, and the 
depositions in this case are to be received as statements on 
oath, even if they were not as depositions.”

See Dubois alias Coppin 12 Juris X. S. 867.
Parker 10 Ont. Hep. 612 and 616.
Counhaye ( 187*1) L.Tv. 8 Q.B. 410.
The same doctrine exists in the V. S.
See Moore on Extradition, p. 525, and Thompson vs. 

Brooks, 3 Blatchford, V. S. 456, where it is declared that 
the Supreme Court in its rules uses the terms depositions 
and affidavits as convertible expressions.

At the hearing, witnesses have been examined in order to 
determine, according to the law of the United States the 
date that the accused become fugitives from justice. This 
evidence could only have been adduced with the view, 1 pre­
sume, to show that the crimes investigated by me would come 
under some statute limiting criminal prosecution. The 
evidence of the legal experts upon this matter is conflicting 
and the authorities cited seem to In* in support of the pre­
tension of the prosecution, that the accused have been fugi­
tives from the justice of the United States to all intents and 
purposes since December 180}), which is the time that indict­
ments were laid against them in Georgia for conspiracy to 
defraud and presenting false and fraudulent claims, and 
that, they were arrested in New York, and proceedings ins­
tituted for their removal to Georgia to there answer to those 
charges and all other charges that might be there preferred 
against them. The authorities cited were Streep v. 1 . S. 
160 V. S. : TTowgate v. V. S., 24 Washington Law Reporter
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205 to 224 ; Uolierts and Reilly, 1 Hi I'. S. ; V. S. vs. White, 
< ranch, V. S. ( '. C. Report, US and 73.

Whatever might lie the bearing of these authorities n|N>n 
this |mdm, and whatever doubt might Is1 left I do not think 
that the inane is raised in this ease, because the eanlitial 
condition to raise it. is missing, namely, the proof of the 
existence of a limitation statute, and of the terms of it actu­
ally affecting the crimes under examination. It is true that 
the authorities eitexl refer to some limitation statut*1* affix-t­
ing the crimes then tried, which were different from those 
triixl at present, hut I cannot presume from these reference* 
that there is a limitation statute affecting the present crime's, 
and go and pick it out in onr library, if it is there, and study 
every clause of it, in order to find out whether then- is any 
disposition affecting the crimes with which the accused are 
presently charged, and interpret it from my own knowledge, 
without the very dispositions affecting tin's!1 crimes ,if any 
exist, lining formally proves I and put in flu1 record. At any 
rate, if a doubt would exis( n|siu the1 matter of tile1 accuses! 
being fugitives front justice from Itoexmher IS!)!) or from 
March 1802 which is the1 date they came into Canada, I 
think the* question is one for the1 trial court in (hxirgia to 
eletermine. (See IT. 8. vs (’esike1 17 Wall V. S. Supreme 
Court, 108). However, this point swing to have Usui aban­
doned, for at the1 argument hail after the closing of the evid­
ence, Counsel for the. elefenee1 did not mention it.

The defence has advanced the pretension that for the 
'definition of extradition crimes, recourse should he had to 
the Knglish law and not to the Canadian law. Xo prexxv 
dent, however, has lieen cited upon this point, and I do not 
think it has been seriously urged. However, the letter and 
spirit of the Extradition Act are contrary to this pretension, 
also the universal jurisprudence.

Sub-section I! of section 2 of our Extradition Act, Chapter 
142 Revise-d Statutes, states :

(6) The expression “extradition crime” may mean any 
crime which, if committed in Canada, or within Canadian 
jurisdiction, would be one of the crimes described in the
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first schedule to tlii- Act,—ami, in the application of this 
Act to the case of anv extradition arrangement, means any 
crime tlescribetl in such arrangement, whetlicr compris<><l in 
the said schedule or not.

Section 24 of the same Act, says:
“ The list of crimes in the tir-t schedule to this Act shall 

1m* construed according to the law existing in Canada at the 
date of the alleged crime, whether hy common law or by 
statute made before* or after the passing of this Act, and as 
including only such crimes, of the descriptions comprised 
in the list as an*, under that law, indictable offences,"

Section 11 of the said Act states:
11.—“ If, in the case of a fugitive alleged to have been 

convicted of an extradition crime, such evidence is produced 
us would, according to the law of Canada, subject to tin*
provisions of this Act, prove that he vas -.....nvictod,— and
if, in the case of a fugitive accused of an extradition crime, 
such evidence is produced as would, according to the law of 
Canada, subject to the provisions of this Act, justify his 
committal for trial, if the crime had been committed in 
Canada, the judge shall issue his warrant for tin* committal 
of the fugitive to the nearest convenient prison, there to re­
main until surrendered to the foreign state, or discharged 
according to law; hut otherwise tin* judge shall order him 
to lx* discharged.”

These citations of the Act dispose, I think, of this last 
objection of the defence. Besides, it has been held in ex 
parts, T.aniarande, 10 L.C..T., p. 2*0; c.r parlr Worms, 22 
L.C..T,, 109; in re T. B. Smith, 4 C.C.P.R. 215, that the 
acts alleged must constitute an offence under Canadian law.

Ex part Seitz fVol. .*$), Can. Critn. Cas., p. 127.
The same views arc held in tin* United States, where it 

is held that the offence must lx* one against the law of the 
United States. See re Farez 7 Blatchford, 357; re Wadge,
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15 Federal Hep. 604; re Charleston, 34 Federal Keport, 
531.

Moore on Extradition, says, page 525: “ It has been
held that the rule that the evidence must lie such as to justify 
commitment for trial at the place where the fugitive is found, 
it the offence had there been committed, applies not only to 
the admissibility and the amount of the evidence required 
for that purpose in the particular place, but also to the de­
finition of the offence.”

The opinion of Sir Edward Clarke upon the duties of the 
extradition commissioner as to committal or discharge might 
perhaps lie cited with advantage, not that T have any doubts 
as to the course that 1 have to follow, but to show bow the 
path of the Extradition Commissioner is narrow. And 
this also answers the contention of the learned counsel for 
the defence that the accused were entitled to the benefit of 
any reasonable doubt, if any existed.

Clarke, on Extradition, p. 247 :—“ It must l>e retnem- 
bered that the Magistrate investigating a case of demanded 
extradition is not quite in the same position as if lie were 
deciding on a charge of crime committed within his own 
jurisdiction. In the latter case he has full discretion, he 
may, and often does, discharge a prisoner because, although 
there is /irimn facie evidence of guilt, the circumstances 
are so obscure, the intent so doubtful, the testimony so con­
flicting, that he thinks a jury would not he likely to eonv"et. 
But in a case of extradition he cannot consider these mat­
ters. If lie finds sufficient evidence of guilt to justify a com­
mittment. the question of a probability of a conviction is 
not one for his consideration.”

See e.r parle Feinlx'rg, Can. Crim. Cas., Vol. 4, p. 270
(Wurtele, J.).

On the whole, my conclusion is that the allegation of 
the conspiracy to defraud the United States as being in 
existence between Carter and the accused, on or about July 
1st, 1897, is proven to the hilt ; that Carter, a public officer 
and agent and trustee of the United States, was guilty and
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convicted in the United States of fraud, a- declared by the 
United States Supreme Court in the case of Carter is. 
MeClnughry ; that this otfcncc of fraud and participation 
therein are punishable by the laws of both Canada and the 
demanding country ; that the accused have participated in 
the offence of fraud committed by Carter, for which lie was 
so convicted ; that fraud by an agent and trustee and parti­
cipation therein are extraditable crimes.

2nd.—That Carter was guilty in the United States and 
was convicted of embezzlement, which offence is known under 
our law by the term of theft, the difference in the name of 
the offence in the two oountrh - I icing immaterial ; that the 
accused have participated by their conspiracy with Carter 
in the embezzlement (theft) so committed by him ; that 
Mich participation is punishable by the laws of both coun­
tries, and is an extradition crime.

3rd.—That on July tith. 1 ^t• T, the accused have fraudu­
lently received from Carter the sum of $ü7.r>.740.!t0, knowing 
then that, the same had been embezzled (stolen) by him, and 
that the offence of receiving stolen property is punishable 
under the laws of both countries, and is bv the Treaty, Sec­
tion 3, an extradition crime.

Consequently, 1 determine that the accused must I*1 com­
mitted to gaol pending surrender.

The Formal Committal is as follows:

Canada, 1
Province of Quel**-. The Extradition Act. 
District of Montreal. '

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER.

To all or any of the Constables and other Peace Officers 
in the said Distriet of Montreal, and to the Keeper of the 
common Jail at. Montreal;

Be it remembered that on this sixth day of June in the 
year of Our Lord one thousand nine-hundred and five at the 
said City of Montreal, Benjamin D. Greene and John F.
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Gaviior brought lief ore me, Ulric Lafontaine Esquire, a 
Commissioner duly appointed under the Great Seal of 
Canada, to act judicially in extradition eases, within the 
Province of Quebec under “The Extradition Act”, who liavo 
been apprehended under the said Act, to Ik- dealt with ac­
cording to law; and for as much as 1 have determined that 
they should lie surrendered in pursuance of the said Act, on 
the ground that they are accused of the following extradition 
crimes that is to say for, that the said Benjamin I). Greene 
and John F. Gaynor:

1. Did on or about July 1st 18»7, within the Easteni 
Division of the Southern District of Georgia, in the United 
States of America, participate in fraud then and there 
committed liy Oberlin M, Carter, a disbursing officer, agent, 
and trustoe, in the employment of the Government of the 
United States:—

(a) By entering into a corrupt agreement (con­
spiracy) with the said Oberlin M. Carter, the said officer 
and agent of the United States, to defraud the United 
States in the disharge of the duties of his said office and 
employment, and for the payment by him, as such dis­
bursing officer and agent of the United States, out of 
the public moneys of the United States entrusted ami to 
l>o entrusted to him as such disbursing officer and agent, 
of fraudulent claims made and to lx; made against, the 
United States for the benefit of said conspirators and to 
bo presented to said disbursing officer for his approval 
and payment : hv which corrupt agreement and deceit­
ful device the said officer ami agent transferred the 
exercise of the discretions of his office, and the services 
of his employment, which he was in duty bound as such 
officer and agent to render honestly ami faitlifully, to 
ami in favour of the United States, from the United 
States, his principal and employer, to the said Benja­
min D. G rev ne. John F. Gaynor ami others, so that 
the said LTnitcd States, byr said corrupt agreement itself,



93

lost what it was untitled 1<1 have, the honest and faithful 
service# of its said publie officer and agent, to its injure.

(b) By jointly with said Oberliu M. Carter, the 
officer, agent and trustee, of the I’uited States, causing 
to he made and presented to said Carter us such officer, 
and agent, fraudulent claims against the Government 
of the l ni ted Stales for his approval and payment, to 
the amount of $070,719.90 knowing the same to be 
fraudulent.

And did, on or about duly titli, 1'97. within the Kast- 
tern Division of the Southern District of Georgia, in the 
United States of America, participate in the cmlic/zlement 
then and there committed bv Obcrlin M. Carter, a disbursing 
officer, agent and trustee, in the employment of the Govern­
ment of tin1 United States, of the sum of $070,719.90 of 
the public moneys of the United States, then and there en­
trusted to said Obcrlin M. Carter as such officer and 
agent :—

(a) By soliciting, counselling, moving, aiding and 
procuring said Obcrlin M. Carter, the officer, agent and 
trustee entrusted with said public money of the United 
States, knowingly to apply the same to a purpose not 
prescribed by law, to wit, to the payment of fraudulent 
claims against the Government of the United States, to 
the amount of $575,749.90;

(b) By knowingly having applied the said sum of 
$575,740.90 of the publie moneys of the said United 
States, received by them from said Obcrlin M. Carter, 
as such officer, agent and trustee, knowing the same 
to have lieen fraudulently obtained and fraudulently 
paid out bv said Carter as such disbursing officer, agent, 
and trustee, to the payment of fraudulent claims against 
the Gov. i ment of the United States, to the amount of 
$575,749.90 by them caused to lie presented to said
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Oberlin -M. Carter for approval and payment by him, 
as such officer agent and trustee, that being an appli­
cation of said money for a purpose not prescribed by 
law.

3. And did on or about July (ith, 1897, knowingly and 
unlawfully receive from Oberlin M. Carter, the sum of 
$575,749.90 of the moneys and property of the United 
States, knowing the same to have lieeu fraudulently obtained 
by said Oberlin M. Carter, and did thereafter have in their 
possession said money and property, or a part thereof, within 
the said Eastern Division of the Southern District of Geor­
gia, knowing the same to have been fraudulently obtained as 
aforesaid.

As will more fully ap]iear from the complaint fvled and 
the evidence adduced in this proceeding on the part of the 
prosecution :—

All of which crimes, and participation therein, are punish­
able by the laws of the United Kingdom of Great Britain 
and Ireland, of the Dominion of Canada, and of the United 
States, and are Extradition crimes.

THIS IS THEREFORE TO COMMAND OU the 
said Constables, in Ilis Majesty’s name, forthv . to convey 
and deliver the said Benjamin I). Greene and John F. Gay- 
nor into the Custody of the Keeper of the said .Tail, at 
Montreal, and you, the said Keeper, to receive the said 
Benjamin D. Greene and John F. Gaynor into your custody, 
and them there safely to keep until they are thence delivered 
pursuant to the provisions of the said Act for which this 
shall he your warrant.

Given under my hand and seal at the City of Montreal 
this sixth day of .Tune A.D. 1905.

(Signed) UT.RTC LAFONTAINE.

Extradition Commissioner.
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Mr. Commissioner Lafontaine, addressing the accused, 
then said:

It is my duty to inform you that you will not be surren­
dered until after the expiration of fifteen days, and that 
you have the right to apply for a writ of Habeas Corpus.

The goaler thereupon conveyed the prisoners to the common 
gaol, there to await the final order upon the committal for 
surrender.
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II.

PRIVY COUNCIL JUDGMENT.

Tlie London Times Report.

The report of the judgment of the Judicial Committee of 
the Privy Council, on the appeal of the United States in the 
ease of Gaynor and Greene, as contained in " The Times,” 
London, Thursday, February 9th, 1905, corrected from the 
official blue-print of the judgment, is as follows :—

TIIE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA v. GAYNOR 
AND ANOTHER.

This was an appeal from judgments of Mr. Justice Caron, 
one of the Judges of the Superior Court of Lower Canada, 
of August 13, 1902.

Sir Edward Clarke, K.C., Mr. Donald Macmaster, K.C. 
(of the Canadian Bar), and Mr. E. Percival Clarke ap­
peared for the American Government ; Mr. Asquith, Tv.C., 
Mr. Horace A very, K.C., Mr. L. A. Taschereau, Tx.C. (of 
the Canadian Bar), and Mr. Charles Matthews for the re­
spondents.

The arguments were heard in Dceemlier before a Board 
composed of the Lord Chancellor, Lord Macnaghten, Lord 
Roliertson, Lord Lindlev, Sir Ford North and Sir Arthur 
Wilson, when judgment was reversed. (Vide, The Times, 
December 17 and 19.)

The Lord Chancellor now delivered their Lordships’ judg­
ment. lie said : “ This is an appeal from judgments of Mr. 
Justice Caron, one of the Judges of the Superior Court for 
Lower Canada, dated August 13, 1902, dismissing motions 
made on behalf of the United States of America on July 9, 
1902, to quash writs of habeas corpus granted by the said 
learned Judge to the respondents on the 21st June, 1902,

X
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end ordering their lilwration. The facts, which are not 
really in dispute, appear to lie that the two respondents, 
Gavnor and Greene, had lieen in the employment of the Gov­
ernment of the United States of America, and have been 
charged with certain criminal offences in respect of certain 
transactions in the State of Georgia. While they were in 
Quebec, application was made to an officer called an Extradi­
tion Commissioner for their arrest in pursuance of the inter­
national extradition arrangements between Canada and the 
United States of America.

The application was made upon an information which 
(among other things) alleged that the respondents lnul been 
guilty of theft, and the Commissioner, Mr. Vlric Lafontaine, 
duly issued his warrant for the arrest of the alleged crim­
inals. They were accordingly arrested, and upon their 
arrest, they applied to a learned Judge, Mr. Justice Andrews, 
for a writ of habeas corpus.

Now the only question which the learned Judge had to 
determine was whether the accused were at the time of the 
issue of the writ in question in lawful custody. If they 
were, he had no jurisdiction to release them, hut was Imuud 
to remand them to custody, and, up to this point, it is ditli- 
sult to see what ground could he even suggested for their 
release.

The offence of theft was an offence which made the of­
fender liable to extradition.

The Commissioner was invested by the Extradition 
Act with all the powers of a Judge in that behalf, and 
under the Commissioner’s warrant the officer having the 
custody of the accused was to receive and keep them till a 
particular date (die 27th of May, 1U02), and then bring 
them before tin- Commissioner to lx1 further dealt with 
according to law (R.S.C., e. 142).

It is difficult to understand what is the supposed unlaw­
fulness of the custody, and it is only upon the supposed un­
lawfulness of the custody that any application for discharge 
could be founded.
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It was probably owing to some mistake as to the jurisdic­
tion of the Commissioner that any writ was issued. At all 
events, when the facts were placed before Mr. Justice 
Andrews, and the prisoners were* brought before him under 
bis order, the learned Judge did what was obvioudy right, 
lie remanded them to their lawful custody from which they 
never ought to have been removed, and expressed himself 
thus :—“ I consider that I am in possession of these accused 
“ in virtue of my order, having taken them from the gaoler 
“ in the district, of Montreal, in whose lawful custody 1 now 
“ return them. I consider I have no right whatsoever to 
“ do anything which might in the most remote degree defeat 
“ the obligation under which I feel I am, and I may say, 
“ and 1 do sav, that I fed that the Province is under, that 
“ tliiese men should go back to the place from which I took 
“them. If I took them by mistake from there, if I took 
“ them without jurisdiction, that is no reason why they 
“ should escape here, and it seems to me that, it was not for 
“ the persons who induced me to commit this act to now 
“ endeavour to avail themselves of it in order to effect their 
“escape. T consider it my duty to say this, and I now say 
“ that, sitting as a Judge, having issued a writ of habms 
“ corpus, I do not recognize, but I distinctly deny, the right 
“of any other Judge to interfere in the matter until the 
“ men have passed from my hands. When I have given 
“ my order in the premises I have washed my hands of 
“ responsibility in the matter, and then, and not till then, 
“ it is my firm conviction, that no other Judge has the 
“ power to interfere with them. I say this, of course, not 
“ because I desire to say it in respect of any other Judge, 
“ but T think I am bound to sav it. to the sheriff, who is now 
“ present.

“ So that there may be no mistake in the matter 
“ I have drawn up my judgment in writing, and it is this:— 
“I, the undersigned Judge, having heard the petitioner by 
“ his counsel, he, the said petitioner, being now present before 
“me, in the custody of the sheriff of this district, aloo pre­
ssent before me, T do hereby order the send sheriff forthwith
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“to convey the said petitioner, John Francis Gaynor, to 
“the common gaol of the district of Montreal, and 
“there to deliver the said John Francis Gaynor 
“ into the custody of the kee]>er of the said com- 
“ mon gaol in Montreal, who is hereby ordered to receive the 
“said John Francis Gaynor into his custody, and to safely 
“keep him until duly discharged in due course of law, 
“ according to the terms and exigencies of the warrant, under 
“ which the stud gaoler, has returned on the writ of habeas 
“ corpus to him directed by me that he detains him, to wit, 
“the warrant under the hand and seal of Vine Iaifontaine, 
“ E*|., Extradition Commissioner, issued and dated at the 
“said City of Monreel, on the ninetenth day of May, in tlio 
“second year of his Majesty's reign, and in the year of Our 
“ Lord, one thousand nine hundred and two. Thus adjudged 
“and ordered by me at the City o Quebec the twenty-first 
“day of June in the said year one thousand nine hundred 
“and two. Frederick W. Andrews, Judge, Superior Court, 
“ Quebec.”

Their Lordships are of opinion that Mr. Justice Andrews 
was quite accurate in what he then did. There had lieeti 
a regular and proper application to the Extradition Commis­
sioner, who, after receiving evidence to indentifv the per­
sons charged, had appointed a dav for the regular procedure 
in extradition and had in the meantime committed the ac­
cused to the proper custody by way of remand.

Mr. Justice Andrews was apparently not informed of this, 
and he issued the writ of habeas corpus, but fas will I»' 
pointed out hereafter) the writ, if issued, could have no 
other return that the cause of detention was a lawful remand 
bv a Commissioner having jurisdiction over the subject- 
matter of the inquiry.

When the learned Judge found out the mistake that had 
been made, be at once proceeded to put it right, and then the 
somewhat extraordinary intervention of Mr. Justice Caron 
took place, which has given rise to this appeal. Notwith­
standing the judgment of Mr. Justice Andrews before him, 
who hail justly' pointed out that the matter stood for adjudica-
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tion before bim, the learned Judge issued a writ of habeas 
corpus returnable before himself, anil ultimately discharged 
the accused from custody upon grounds which their Lord- 
ships have some difficulty in following.

Mr. Justice Caron first gets rid of the adjudication by 
Mr. Justice Andrews by a singular misapprehension of that 
learned Judge’s language. Mr. Justice Andrews undoubt­
edly did decide the question before him, which was whether 
Mr. Commissioner Lafontaine’s order showed a sufficient 
cause of detention, and he decided that it did.

Mr. Justice Andrews gave bis reasons, and these Mr. 
Justice Caron confuses with the ad judication. The 
adjudication was (a) the determination that the 
imprisonment was lawful, and (b) the endorsement on tho 
writs that they were quashed. That is, in point of law, the 
judgment, and, though it is common enough to speak of a 
learned Judge’s judgment in referring to the reasons by 
which that judgment is supported, it. is somewhat singular 
to find a learned Judge himself confusing the two tilings.

The substance of Mr. Justice Caron’s determination apjiears 
to have lieen that no offence within the meaning of the Extra­
dition Act was shown upon the document that had lieen 
brought Is'fore him by a writ of certiorari. Their Lordships 
are wholly unable to agree with him. There was an accusa­
tion of theft, which is an offence in both countries, hut the 
learned Judge does not appear to have apprehended that an 
accusation, on information, of theft was enough for the claim 
to arrest and detain. Whether the accusation was well 
founded or whether there was enough to justify the Extra­
dition Commissioner in committing for surrender was a ques­
tion which would have lieen regularly brought before him and 
determined at the proper time if the due course of justice 
had not been interfered with by the interposition of the 
learned Judge. The learned Judge accurately points out 
that a conspiracy is not an offence within the treaty, and be­
cause an indictment for conspiracy has been framed in which 
acts of larceny are charged as overt acts of the conspiracy the 
learned Judge seems to think that the United States Govern-



101

merit are .stopped from treating them as distinct and indu 
pendent acts of larceny. The whole matter, and. inter alia, 
how much evidence there was of larceny, would have been 
duly and properly investigated if the case had been allowed 
to take its proper course. Their Lordship# do not mean to 
suggest that the writ of habeas carpus is not applicable when 
there is a preliminary proceeding. Each case must depend 
upon its own merits. But where a prisoner is brought before 
f competent tribunal, and is charged with an extradition 
offence, and remanded for the express purpose of affording 
the prosecution the opportunity of bringing forward the 
evidence by which that accusation is to be supported ; if, in 
such a case, upon a writ of habeas corpus, a learned Judge 
treats the remand warrant, as a nullity, and proceeds to adju­
dicate upon the case as though the whole evidence were be- 
foro him, it would paralyse the administration of justice and 
render it impossible for the proceedings in extradition to lie
effective.

The proceedings are very simple : information and ar­
rest ; then — cither at once or on remand — the Judge 
investigates the case, and either discharges or make# up his 
mind to commit for extradition, and, if he does the latter, 
he has to inform the accused person that he will not be sur­
rendered for 15 days, in order to afford him an opportunity of 
bringing the legality of his surrender before a Court of Jus­
tice. The same facts and the same observations apply to the 
case of the other respondent, Greene. Their Lordship will 
accordingly humbly advise his alajesty that the two judg­
ments of Jlr. Justice Caron of the 13th August, 1902, ought 
to be reversed.

“ The respondents must pay the costs of this appeal.”
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III.
THE JUDGMENT OF THE COURT OF KING’S 

BENCH FOR LOWER CANADA.

(Appeal Side.)

This judgment dismissed the appeal of the fugitives and 
confirmed the judgment of the Honourable Mr. Justice 
Davidson of the Superior Court for Lower Canada, refusing 
their application for a Writ of Prohibition to restrain Judge 
Lafontaine from proceeding with the enquiry upon the 
ground that lie was acting in excess of his jurisdiction.

This judgment was delivered by the Court of King’s 
Bench, which is the highest Court of Appeal in the Province 
of Quebec, composed of the Honourable Sir Alexander La­
coste, Chief Justice, the Honourable Justices Bossé, Blanchet, 
Hall, and Trenholme, on the 19th day of May, 1005. The 
judgment was unanimous. (Montreal Gazette Report.)

Sir Alex. Lacoste, C. J., delivering judgment, said :—
The appellants have been arrested for certain offences 

committed in the United States. The American Govern­
ment asks for their extradition. They arc actually on trial, 
at Montreal, before Mr. Lafontaine, commissioner in extra­
dition, appointed by the Federal Government.

The appellants declined the jurisdiction of the commis­
sioner, and on the latter’s refusal to desist, they asked the 
Hon. Mr. Justice Davidson, one of the judges of the Superior 
Court, authorization to take out a writ of prohibition (C.P., 
1003-993). The judge refused to grant it; and it is from 
that decision that Gaynor and Greene have appealed.

They take exception to the jurisdiction of Mr. Lafontaine, 
because ho holds his commission from the Federal Govern­
ment, which, according to them, had no power to appoint 
extradition cominissioi-ers.
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The respondents pleaded :
1. That no appeal lay from the judge's decision.
2. That the writ of prohibition was not available in the 

present instance.
3. That the commissioner’s appointment is valid.
As an additional ground the appellants argued that it is 

the Imperial Extradition Act (33-34 Viet., chap. .12), which 
governs us, and that, under that act, police magistrates alone 
have the right to try extradition matters.

Does an appeal lie from Mr. Justice Davidson?
Art. 1000, C.P., grants an appeal from the final judg­

ment, on a writ of prohibition. This includes an appeal 
from the decisions rendered bv a judge in chambers. (C.P.,
art. 72.)

The respondents have argued that this court cannot au­
thorize the issue of the writ, because that power is given to 
a judge of the Superior Court exclusively.

In granting an appeal, the law intends that the judgment 
of the Court of Appeal should la- effective, and that the 
court may apply the remedy the appellant asks for. That 
is the reason why it authorizes us to substitute ourselves 
for the judge who has rendered the decision.

We hold that the ap]>eal lies. Consult on this first, point : 
Ch. de Fer de la Vallée Est du Richelieu and Menard, 
R.J.Q., 7 Q.B. 486; Gain vs. Bartels, 1 Q.P.R. 531; La­
chance vs Paroisse de Ste. Anne, R.J.Q., 10 K.Tl. 223.

Does the writ of prohibition lie ?
The respondents say that the proper remedy is a quo war­

ranto, because, if Mr. Lafontaine is not legally appointed a 
commissioner, he has usurped a public office, and his right 
to it can be attacked only by way of quo warranto. (C.P., 
art. 987.)

And the respondents further argue, that, in any event, the 
writ of prohibition, like the writ of mandamus (C.P., 1003), 
lies onlv in the case where there is no other remedy equally 
convenient, beneficial, and effectual (C.P., 992), and that,
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under the Extradition Aet, the appellants have a recourse by 
wav of hnheas corpus ( Extradition Aet).

We do not mx) any necessity for determining these two ob­
jections. We prefer to take the position assumed bv the 
appellants in their argument before us, and decide the seeond 
point on the interpretation and bearing which we give to 
art 1008.

They say, the commissioner, when sitting, constitutes a 
court, a tribunal, which proceeds without jurisdiction, and 
the Superior Court, in virtue of its general power of super­
vision and control (C.P. 50), as well as in virtue of the 
special power conferred upon it by art. 1003 C.P., can pre­
vent all inferior tribunals from proceeding without juris­
diction. I

Assuming that the commissioner presides in a court, when­
ever he sits, that court is not gn inferior tribunal.

It is true that the Superior Court has a right of supervi­
sion and control over all the courts of the province (C.P., 
art. 50), but that power does not include the control of a 
federal court, such as this one. The ( 'ommissioner in Extra­
dition has ]lowers espial to those of the judges of the Su­
perior Courts, and the art. 1003 C.P., is not applicable to it.

But the appellants call in question the right of the Federal 
Government to establish such courts. That is the gist of the 
following question, which we shall now answer:

Is the appointment of M/r. Lafontaine a valid one?
Section 132 of the British North America Act says :
“ Tlie Parliament and Government of Canada shall have 

all powers necessary or proper for performing the obligations 
of Canada or of any province thereof n< part of the British 
Empire towards foreign countries, arising under treaties 
between the Empire and such foreign countries.”

lAind section 101 :
“ The Parliament of Canada may, notwithstanding any­

thing in the act, from time to time, provide for the. constitu­
tion, maintenance, and organization of a general court of 
appeal for Canada,” and for the establishment of any addi-
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tional courts for the better administration of the laws of 
Canada."

From these enactments it appears that the Parliament anil 
the Government of Canada have jurisdiction in extradition 
matters, and that the Parliament of Canada, may create a 
special court to trv extradition cases. That is what it did 
when it passed the Extradition Act ( Ii.S.C., cap. 112) and up- 
]H>inted as extradition commissioners the judges of the Su­
perior Courts anil "such other persons as might lie named 
by the Governor-in-CounciL”

I ho appellants argue that bv "additional courts" are neees- 
sarily meant other courts of nppeul or courts of the same 
nature us the Court of Appeal. That is an unreasonable dis­
tortion and restrietion of the text. The act has in view courts 
of original jurisdiction and courts of appeal. It is in virtue 
of that section that the Exchequer Court was created, that 
jurisdiction has been given to certain courts in matters of 
contestation of federal elections, and that the Kailway Com­
mission was constituted.

The appellants call upon us to reconcile foregoing clauses 
with sections ill and !I2, which give the federal Govern­
ment (01, sub. 27) :

“ The criminal law, except the constitution of courts of 
criminal jurisdiction, but including the procedure in cri­
minal matters.”

And to the local Government (ill, sub. 14) :
“ The administrai ion of justice in the province, including 

the constitution, maintenance, and organization of provin­
cial courts, both of civil and of criminal jurisdiction, and 
including procedure in civil matters in those courts.”

There is no contradiction in the two clauses. The provin­
cial courts do not exclude the ferlerai courts with regard 
to the administration of ferlerai laws. And if there were 
a contradiction, we should have to prefer section 101 on 
account of these words in it: “notwithstanding anything to 
the contrary in this act.” The provincial jurisdiction of the 
provincial courts in criminal matters extends only to offenses 
committed within the province.
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Art. 2447, R.S.Q., defines the jurisdiction of the Court 
of King’s Bench as follows:

“ The Court of King’ Bench, Crown side, ami the judges 
thereof, have criminal jurisdiction throughout the province 
over all crimes and misdemeanors committed within its 
limits,” which does not include offences committed abroad.

It was, therefore, necessary that the Parliament of Can­
ada should create a special court, or should appoint persons 
to apply the extradition laws.

Therefore, we believe that M,r. Lafontaine was legally ap­
pointed extradition commissioner.

A final objection has been raised, as I have said before:
The Imperial Extradition Act (33-43, Viet., Cap. 52), 

orders extradition proceedings to be carried on before a police 
magistrate (Sect. 8), that this shall apply to all British pos­
sessions (Sect. 16 to 26), but its effect can be suspended in 
a colony by an order of the King-in-Council, when that col­
ony, has, by statute, provided for the putting into effect of 
the Imperial Extradition Treaties. Canada passed such a 
statute in 1886, (it now forms chap. 142 of the Revised Sta­
tutes of Canada). The Imperial Government then passed 
an order-in-Council on the 17th November, 1888, (R. S. C., 
1888, p. 15), in the following terms:

“ The operation of the extradition acts of 1870 and 1878 
shall be suspended within the Dominion of Canada, so long 
as the provisions of the said act of the Parliament of Canada 
of 1886, entitled, ‘‘An act respecting the extradition of fugi­
tive criminals,” shall continue in force and no longer.”

Subsequently to this order-in-Council the Canadian Par­
liament in 1889 (52, Viet. C. 36), amended the Extradition 
Act of 1886. The order-in-Council of 1888 has, in conee- 
quenoe, say the appellants, “la-come ineffective, the Imperial 
Act is once more applicable to Canada, and a police magis­
trate alone has jurisdiction, under the Imperial Act, to try 
cases in extradition.”

The act of 1889 does not repeal that of 1886 that is to 
say, Cap. 142, of R. S. C. It affects none of the latter’s 
dispositions, it applies only to the fugitives from such coun-
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tries us have no extradition treaties with Groat Britain, or 
to crimes not covered by the treaties signed by Great Britain 
and certain foreign countries. All the provisions of It. S. V. 
142, are still in force, and we are still governed b> the order- 
in-Couucil of 1888.

Since the act of 1889, Great Britain and the United States 
have twice modified their extradition treaty; for the first 
time, the 12th July, 1889, and again in 1902, and each time 
the order-in-Conncii has been renewed (Statutes of Canada, 
1890, pp. XLII.-XLVI.—Statutes of Canada, 1902, pp. 
XV.-XVII). The new ordcrs-in-( 'ouncil are a peremptory 
answer to the objection raised by the appellants.

We are, therefore, of opinion that Ills Lordship, Judge 
Davidson has rendered a proper judgment.

Our attention is persistently drawn to the fact that the 
authorization asked for is merely to institute an action and 
that the question raised was a very serious one, and one 
that should he argued before the courts.

Wjc arc convinced that the commissioner has jurisdiction, 
that his appointment is valid, that the Superior Court cannot 
intervene. Under such circumstances, an intervention on our 
part would hamper the commissioner and would trammel 
justice.

The appeal is not allowed.
Mr. Commissioner Lafontaine filed no plea, but “ sub­

mitted himself to justice.”
Upon the argument before the Court of Appeal, the 

United States was represented by Messrs. Donald Mac- 
master, K.C., and G. G. Stuart, K.C. They filed special 
pleadings, the substantial parts of which were adopted 
by the Superior Court and the Court of Appeal. The coun­
sel for the accused on the appeal were Messrs. T. C. Cas- 
grain, K.C., and Alexander Taschereau, K.C.

Gazette Printing Company, Montreal, Canada
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I.
CANADA : 

Proving* ok Quebec 
District of Montreal. 
City of Montreal.

j $hc Eitvadition <àct

THE ES OF AMERICA,

Applicants fur Extriulitwn.

JOHN F. GAYNOIt AND BENJAMIN D. GREENE,

Fugitive* from Justice.

Judgment and opinion of Ulric Lafontaine, 
Esquire, Extradition Commissioner, given at 
Montreal, Canada, 6th June, 1905.

Mr. Donald Macmastcr, K.C., and Mr. Guetavus G. Stuart, 
K.C., instructed by the Honourable Marion Erwin, Special 
Assistant to the Attorney-General of the United States, ap­
peared for the American Government; the Honourable T. 
Chase-Casgrain, K.C., and Mr. L. A. Taschereau, K.C., for 
the fugitives.

Mr. Lafontaine, Extradition Commissioner, read the fol­
lowing opinion :—

Benjamin D. Greene and John F. Gavnor, prisoners in 
this ease, are charged bv the United States of America 
with having, within the jurisdiction of the said United States 
of America, to wit. within the Eastern Division of the South-

7712
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cm District of Georgia, on or about July 1st, 1807, parti­
cipated in fraud then and there committed by Oberlin M. 
Carter, a disbursing officer, agent and trustee in the employ­
ment of the Government of the United States of America:

(а) By entering into a corrupt agreement (conspiracy) 
with the said Oberlin M. Garter, the officer and agent, to 
defraud the said United States in the discharge of the duties 
of hLs office and employment, by which agreement, the said 
agent transferred his honest services, which he was in duty 
bound to give, from the United Statens, his principal, to the 
conspirators, the said Benjamin I). Greene and John F. 
Gaynor and others, so that the United States by the agree­
ment itself, lost what it was entitled to have, his honest 
services as a public officer and agent to its injury.

(б) By jointly with said Oberlin M. Carter, the officer, 
agent and trustee of the United States, causing to be made 
and presented to said Carter as such officer, and agent, 
fraudulent claims against the Government of the said United 
States for his approval and payment, to the amount of 
$575,740.00, knowing the same to be fraudulent.

2. And did, on or about July 6th, 1807, within the East­
ern Division of the Southern District of Georgia, in the 
United States of America, participate in the embezzlement 
then and there committed by Oberlin M. Carter, a disburs­
ing officer, agent and trustee in the employment of the 
Government of the United States, of the sum of $575,740.00 
of the public moneys of the United States, then and there 
intrusted to said Oberlin M. Carter as such officer and agent :

(a) By soliciting, counselling, moving, aiding and procur­
ing said Oberlin M. Carter, the officer, agent, ami trustee 
intrusted with said public money of the United States 
knowingly to apply the same to a purpose not prescribed 
by law, to wit, to the payment of fraudulent claims against 
the Government of the United States, to the amount of 
$575,740.00.
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(b) By knowingly having applied the said stun of 
$575,74!U)0 of the publie money of the said United States, 
received by them from said Ohcrliu M. Carter, as siieh 
officer, agent, and trustee, knowing the same to have been 
fraudulently obtained by said Carter, to the payment of 
fraudulent claims against the Government of the United 
States, to the amount of #575,740.00, by them caused to bo 
presented to said Oberliti M. Carter for approval and pay­
ment bv him as such officer, agent and trustee, that being 
an application of said money for a purpose not prescribed by 
law.

3. And did, on or about July 0th, 1S07, knowingly and 
unlawfully receive from Oberliti M. Carter the sum of 
$575,740.00 of the money and property of the United 
States, knowing the same to have Ixen fraudulently obtained 
by said Oberliti M. Carter, and did the reafter lutve in their 
possession said money and property, or a part thereof, within 
the said Eastern Division of the Southern District of Geor­
gia, knowing the same to have been fraudulently obtained 
as aforesaid.

The evidence shows that Oberliti It. Carter, Captain in 
the Oops of Engineers of the United States Army, was, on 
the 6th July, 1807, and had been for many years previous, 
in local charge for the United States of the Engineering 
District of Savannah for improvement by the United States 
of rivers and harbours, having succeeded in that office on 
the 24th April, 1888, to General Gillmore, to whom ho 
had lieen the Assistant Resident Engineer at Savannah 
since August 10th, 1884. As such public officer and en­
gineer, be had extensive powers, duties and discretion in 
the letting of contracts for the United States for work on 
improving rivers and harbours in the said District of Savan­
na' ; in the superintendence and supervision of the work 
done by contractors; in the approval of just claims and 
accounts, and in the rejection of unjust claims and accounts 
presented to him by such contractors for work claimed to 
have licon done, and also as a disbursing officer and agent of
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the United States, in the obtaining of money from tho 
Uniteil States for the payment of such claims, so presented 
to him for approval and payment by contractors out. of tho 
moneys of the United States entrusted to him for tho pay­
ment of such claims.

The salary of Carter in 1890 was $2,208 and on July 6th 
1897 it was about $3,000.

On the 8th Oetolier 1896 The Atlantic Contracting Com­
pany, of which the accused wore the principal and leading 
momla-rs, a company incorporated in West Virginia, July 
22nd, 1892, incorporators John F. (iaynor 2993 shares, 
$14,005 ; Benjamin 1). Greene, 2992 shares $14,960; Wil­
liam T. Gaynor, 6 shares $20: A 11. Greene 5 shares, $25; 
J. E. Chandler, 5 shares $25, entered with the Unites! States 
represented hv the said Oberlin M. Carter, in his said official 
capacity, into contracts numlier 6,515 and number 6,517, for 
improving the Harbour of Savannah, Georgia (constructing 
training walls, closing dams or break-waters) ami for cons­
tructing jetties at entrance to ( 'umlierland Sound, Georgia.

In the execution of these two contracts work was com­
menced by tho said Atlantic Contracting Company in De­
cember 1896. and as there was no specific appropriation for 
that work then, claims for work done were only presented on 
July 1st 1897. Those claims aggregated $575,749.90; 
$345,000 being r work done at Cumberland Sound, and 
$230,749.90 f< work done at Savannah Harbour, and were 
approved th lay by Captain Carter, who immediately 
demanded i the Treasurer of the United States the neces­
sary funds to pay them, and the amount required was put to 
the credit of Captain Carter in New York by the Treasurer 
of the United States, and payment was effected on July 6th 
1897 by two cheques signed by Oberlin M. Carter dated 
Savannah, July 6th 1897, to the order of The Atlantic Con­
tracting Company, one for $345,000 and the other for $230,- 
749.90, and both endorsed “ The Atlantic Contracting Com­
pany, John F. Gaynor, President, for deposit B. 1). Greene,” 
the two accused in this case.
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Shortly afterwards Captain Carter left tlio Unite»! Staten 
for England, as lie hail been appoiutixl attache to the 1 nitod 
Stales Emhaasy in Knglaml, anil he was Mieccixhsl by Captain 
Cassias K. Gillette, of the Corps of Engineers of the United 
States Army, who entered into his ottiee at Savannah on .Tilly 
20th 1807.

.Vs already mentioned, the work to lie done under the pre­
sent. contracta was improving the harbour of Savannah, 
Georgia, by constructing training walls, closing dams, or 
break-waters, and constructing jetties at the entrance to Cum­
berland Sound, Georgia. The sjiccifi cations for the exmi- 
tion of this work, and the contracts, contained three different 
designs of log and brush mattress, and of brush mattress, one 
of them, the third, of value greatly inferior to the two others, 
because for its building it required much less material and a 
great deal loss time and lalxmr, and consequently was to a 
great, extent less expensive to the contractors, and of much 
less value to the United States. In the specifications for 
these contracts it was stipulated that any one of these three 
designs could Is» called for by the engineer in charge, who 
had the selection, and that only one price should lie tendered 
for the three designs of mattress by intending bidders.

The result of this condition was to make it inqierahve for 
the prudent bidder to state a price high enough to cover the. 
most expensive design of mattress, in ease it would lie tailed 
for by the engineer in charge. The price for mattresses of 
any dewign in these two contracts was $:l.S0 per cubic yard 
for Savannah Harbour anil $4.40 per cubic yard fur Cum­
berland Sound.

The third design of mattress, that is, the one most econo­
mical in material and lalmur to the contractors and of less 
value to the United States was called for by Carter in both 
instances.

Shortly after his arrival at Savannah, Captain Gillette 
went to Cumberland Sound to inspect the work. He saw 
a brush construction brought out. on a lighter. This brush 
construction did not correspond to any of the designs men-
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tioned in the specifications, and in the contracta of 1896. 
The nearest it came to corresponding with any design was 
the third one, hut it did not by far, as to construction, dimen­
sions, quantity and quality of material used, comply with 
the specifications. Vpon seeing this brush construction, Cap­
tain Gillette gave instructions to some inspectors to have a 
mattress made which should consist of four mattresses ac­
cording to the specifications, third design, piled one on top 
of the other. For the same number of square yards, the first 
mattress which was inspected by Captain Gillette did not 
contain over one third of the material in the same number 
of square yards of the mattress which was ordered to bo made 
by him according to the specifications of the third design— 
not over one third. The first brush mattress that. Captain 
Gillette inspected, and others of the same kind, to his per­
sonal knowledge, went into the work.

Here is a resume and extracts of the deposition of Captain 
Gillette, which is extremely important as showing the 
manner in which the I860 contract, for Cumberland Sound 
was executed: also of depositions of other witnesses and of 
the evidence generally.

CAPTAIN GILLETTE’S DEPOSITION.

In Captain Gillette’s depisition he says that there were 
three designs of mattress specified in contract 4960, October 
22nd, 1892, and in contracts of 8th October, 1896, with The 
Atlantic Contracting Company. The first design was a log 
and brush mattress ; the second design was a mattress of 
brush fascines, consisting of a layer of fascines on top of a 
grillage, and on top of that, a layer of fascines at right angles 
tc those, six feet apart and over that another grillage. The 
third design was also a brush mattress and had ten per cent, 
less material than the second, and the construction of the 
second design is much more carefully and fully specified. 
It is much the more expensive method to construct

As a bidder between these two designs, he would have had 
to bid on the second design, the designs being left to the





Cost of Fascines or Brush Mattresses Undi
District 1884 to

John F. Uaynor.. •

John F. Gay nor...

Win. T. Gaynor...

John F. Gaynor...
Atlantic

Contracting Co.. 
Atlantic

Contracting Co.

Lara & Rosa

Anson M. Bangs... 
Anson M. Bangs 

(stone only).... 
John F. Gaynor... 
Edward H. Gaynor 
Anson M. Bangs... 
Atlantic

Contracting Co..

Copy of sheet 1 of Exhibit 193, Iden 
Explained by testimony of Capt. Gillette, Re

SAVANNAH RIVER AND

Kind of 
Mattress

Price pi 
Sq. Yai

Modified Contract, April 21,
1885...................................... Fascine M.. 47

Supplemental of Dec. 22, 1886. Fascine M..

Contract of January 1Ü, 188V. Fascine and
Supplemental, Mav 6. 1889... Pole M. .63
Contract of Nov. 5, 1890-1891.

Contract of October 22, 1892.. Fascine M.. .95

Contract of October 8, 1896... Fascine M.. .95

CUMBERLAND SO

Contract of Sept. 27, 1884....... Polt- and
Brush M.. .59

Contract of October 29, 1886... Pole and

Contract of Jan. 31, 1889-1891 
Contract of May 4, 1891..........

Brush M.. .47

Fascine M.. .97
Contract of Sept. 16, 1892....... Fascine M.. 1.05
Contract of No 16, 1894....... Fascine M..

Contract of October 8, 1896__ Fascine M.. 1.10



esses Under Various Contracts in Savannah
ET 1884 TO 1897

[Libit 193, Identified Rec. 471—472. 
pL Gillette. Rec. 389-399 to 415. 447 to 471.

RIVER AND HARBOUR

(1 of 
tress

Price per 
Sq. Yard

Thickness Price per 
by Sq. Yrd Cubic Yrd Reference to Drawing Design

ne M.. 47 18" .94 Reference letter, J. F. ( lay nor 
to Carter.

April, 1886,Carter to Gill more 
Apr. 14,1885,( 1 ill more to('artei 
Apr. 17.1886 and Apr. 21,1886

ne M..

îe and

12" 1.10 Reference to letter, Carter 
to Gillmore, Dec. 3 1886. 
3282 Suppl. 3890.

M. . .03 10* 1.42 2nd design.
12*

9"

1 40 4224.

4820, 3rd design.ie M .. .96 3.80

ieM..

:rla

.96

ND SOU

9*

ND

3.80

,nd
h M..

ml

.59 16" 1.32 2744. with 9" logs and 5 
brush layers.

h M.. .47 16" 1.06 3890, 2nd design.

e M.. .97 10" 3.49 4572, Brush.
e M. 1.05 9" 4.20 4620, 3nl design.
e M.. .57 9" 2.28 4820, 3rd design.

e M.. 1.10 9* 4.40 4820, 3rd design.
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choice of the engineer, for two misons : one, there is more 
brush, and the other is, it is required to lie built in a much 
more expensive way. Under the specifications there is more 
brush, more fascines, more lineal feet of fascines, and more 
labour in the second design than in the third. The second 
layer of fascines spaced six feet apart does not exist in the 
third design, and does in the second.

The fascine in the second design shall he made as one con­
tinuous fascine, extending clear across the mattress, the brush 
being laid to break points That requirement is not in the 
third design, and would lx- followed necessarily by more 
brush in each lineal fo. of fascine, and a great deal more 
labour to construct it.

The second design containing ten per cent, more lineal 
feet of fascines, which fascines contain more brush to the 
lineal foot, and which fascines would have to l*1 constructed 
on the shore, or upon ways built upon the lighters, whereas 
the third design can lx built of fascines of any length, the 
fascines cun lie made in the woods where the brush is cut, 
the total cost of a square yard of mattress of the second de­
sign would be at least 25 per cent, more than the third.

The price of the third design in contract No. 4900, 22nd 
October, 1892, Atlantic Contracting Company is 95 cents 
per square yard, or $4.80 per cubic yard, while the price 
for the same mattress in contract 4224 of November 5th, 
1890, was $1.40 per cubic yard.

There is nothing to indicate any difference in the cost of 
manufacture of these two kinds of mattress.

The following table shows the cost of fascines or brush 
mattresses under the various contracts from 1884 to 1897 :—
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Captain Gillette went to Cumberland Sound soon after 
taking charge for the purpose of inspecting the work.

lie says (page 473) :—“ 1 went there and made an inspec­
tion, ami after a time, about a day, the eontraetora brought 
out a brush construction on a lighter or barge; a decked 
barge. It was placed on a superstructure which had been 
built on the deck of the barge. This superstructure con­
sisted of a parallel set of hewn timbers space! three or four 
leet apart cross-wise of the barge. They were horizontal in 
position and about four or five feet above the deck, so ar­
ranged anil t y could be tipped to an inclined
position so that anything placed upon them would slide off 
with a little assistance. On top of that was a rectangular— 
was a pile of brush, rectangular in shape, alsmt 8 feet high, 
the sides being square, the ends also being square, but in 
two sections two steps about four feet deep. That is the 
rise of each step was alsmt four feet, and what you might 
call the trend of the step was alsmt ten feet. The structure 
at a casual inspection appeared to Is- just a mass of irregu­
larly placed brush; you could not see much system about it. 
I did not notice any rope or wire or strings fastening the 
brush into bundles at first, but T lsdieve on careful examina­
tion, a semblance of bundles I discovered. Sticking out 
from the sides of the mattress were small pine poles, some of 
them us large as four inches I should think, at the butts, 
some of them as small as an inch and a half at the small 
ends. On top of the brush could lie distinguished a grillage 
of these ]K>les placed about 8 feet apart. Separate poles 
where they were spliced were simply spliced by lapping and 
wiring. There were evidences of a similar grillage on top 
of each of the lower steps I spoke of at the ends of the mat­
tress or brush construction. The brush was very loose; it 
stuck out in such an irregular manner from ends, sides and 
top of the mattress ns to almost conceal any systematic con­
struction. In attempting to walk across it, 1 found it was 
impracticable or very difficult except by walking a pole. At 
nearly every step I would go in the full length of my legs.

18067705



9

To determine the thickness of the structure, tlie assistant en­
gineer anil the inspector, under my (tcrsunal and immediate 
supervision, took a sounding pole, a round |xtlc about one and 
three quarter incites, or two inches in diameter. The as­
sistant engineer went on top of the mattress and at various 
places shoved this pole bodily through the structure. The 
inspector underneath called out when the end of the pole was 
even with the bottom of the mattress. The thickness of the 
mattress was then read off by the assistant engineer by the 
reading on the jiole, just as if lie were making a sounding 
in water.

Q.—(By Mr. Hose). Won’t you give the names of these 
people, to save trouble?

A.-—The Assistant Engineer's name was Marion Twiggs. 
The inspector was John M. Hall. In selecting the point at 
which this pule was pushed through th<‘ mattress, the upper 
surface was conceived as lining divided, or was actually 
divided by the ]ioles and imaginary lines between them, and 
at the angles of these squares, the pole was thrust through. 
It was not necessary to hunt around to find a place where 
the pole would go through. It could Is- put through with 
very little trouble at any point, and only once or twice did 
Mr. Twiggs have to change the location where he first started. 
The ]>ole on those occasions struck something which would 
not let it go through. 1 then had the mattress photographed
by Mr. Hall.................... The thiekncss of the mattress as
determined by the sounding pole averaged 7-9/10 feet, as I 
remember it.

Q.—(By Mr. Erwin). Go ahead and state what else you 
found out at that time about the mattress and anything in 
connection with the construction of the mattress, in regard 
to its corresponding with the specifications and bow they 
were lieing turned in ?

A.—After carefully inspecting the mattress, a fact which 
would not have occurred to me except had my attention been 
attracted to it, I found that the mattress was divided by 
horizontal poles which could be discovered sticking out of
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the sides and ends, into eight layers which I computed at 
the time under the system of payments per square yard, that 
being designated as an eight course mat, that the structure 
would cost the Government at contract prices something over 
$:l,(i()0. It was by measurement at the time fifty feet short 
dimension. — — —

The Commissioner:—Fifty feet what?
Witness:—Fifty feet dimension on the short side across 

the ends, and the longer dimension was 80 feet on the lxittom 
—100 feet on the bottom, and 80 feet as I remember it at 
the top, the difference Vicing the two stops of which I spoke. 
The mattress was not at all as I understood the specifications.
1 tried to get a copy of the specifications on the work, hut I 
could not find one; I could not get them from the assistant 
engineer or from the inspector ; they hud none ; but as I rc- 
member the mattress it was a single mattress made of closely 
compacted brush fascines, and this structure was designated, 
I fourni in the report, as an eight course mattress and was a 
new thing to me entirely.

Q-—Now Captain, to go hack to the description of that 
brush that was on this barge, you say that the brush was in 
two tiers, as I understand it?

A.—Yes, sir.
Q.—The lower tier being .50 by 100 feet in its horizontal 

dimensions ?
A.—Yes, sir.
Q-—Then that lower tier before it decreased in dimen­

sions, was about how high ?
A.—About four feet; a little less.
Q-—Now, that first tier which is about four feet high you 

say, was divided into parts by little poles sticking out ; the 
ends of them sticking out?

A.—Yes, sir ; that was divided into four courses.
Q-—Then at the top of that fourth course there was a 

decrease in the dimensions of the next tier?

■ ,3
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A.—Yes, sir ; 10 feet at each end, making that one about 
50 by 80 feet. The design of that is that in going into the 
jetty the mattress goes with its short dimension on the axis 
of the jetty, so that when those are laid in the work, cacli 
advances the jetty 50 feet, with a width of 100 feet for four 
courses, and a width of 80 feet for the next four courses. 
It is possible that that 80 feet was !I0 feet. I think it was 
80 however.

(J.—Now, this second tier after getting up the first tier 
four feet, the second tier you say was about 50 by 80 or 
00 feet I

A.—It was 50 by 80. I am positive of it; about that.
(j.—IIow was that divided; in courses also?
A.—Also divided into four courses in the same manner as 

the lower tier.
Q.—So that there were eight courses in that entire brush i
A.—Yes, sir.
Q.-—Counting from the bottom ?
A.—Counting front the bottom to the top.
Q.—And the entire course from the bottom to the top was 

seven feet nine inches ?
A.—Seven and nine-tenths feet on the average.
Q.—You stateil that on top of the mattress there was a 

grillage of poles Ï
A.—Yes, sir.
Q.—What do you mean by grillage of poles ?
A.—1 mean a set of poles running in one direction of the 

mattress and another set crossing them at right angles. In 
this case they were spaced about 8 feet apart each way, and 
then bound together with wires; the poles running in each 
direction.

Q.—Well, just wait a moment ; let’s get the grillage first. 
Look at this drawing which has the old court martial Exhibit 
No. 5. Docs that photograph show the top of that brush?

A.—Yes, sir.
Q.—Does it show the grillage of poles?
A.—Yes, sir.
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Q.—Now, those poles crossing each other on the top of 
that mattress make what you call a grillage of poles?

A.—Yes, sir.
Q.—Then at the top of that lower tier—the fourth tier— 

is there another grillage of poles ?
A.—Yes, sir ; us far as 1 could see. It is impossible to 

tell whether underneath the top half of the mattress, whether 
the poles running the short way of the mattress were used or 
not; 1 don’t remember. I might have found them at the 
ends, hut 1 cannot recall for certain.

Q.—Now, lietween the top of the lower tier and the top 
of the upper tier were there dividing poles that marked off 
those four layers of courses of mats ; were they crossed or 
not ?

A.—They were not between the separating poles between 
each lower one constituting one-half of the grillage. It has 
poles 8 feet apart running one way only. The next the 
separating poles lietween the next two layers would be the 
same, hut running in the opposite direction, their direction 
being at right angles.

Q.—Now, looking at this photograph with the old Exhibit 
No. 5 on it, looking at this grillage of poles which you have 
described on tlig top of it, if you were to take off the top 
layer of poles, then that would leave a layer of poles running 
one way of that mattress?

A.—Yes, sir.
Q.—And that is what you call a half grillage ?
A.—Yes, sir.
Q.—In these other four courses then below the top of the 

mattress, there were only half a grillage ?
A.—Only half grillage.
Q.—That you could see?
A.—Yes, sir.
Q.—And in the lower tier below the top course of the 

lower tier, were there whole grillages or half grillages ?
A.—There were half grillages. On the bottom of the 

whole mattress was a full grillage again.
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Q.—Now, how were these grillages fastened ?
A.—The separate poles of eaeli line constituting a con­

tinuous polo across the mattress and wired together with a 
lap. The poles of each half of the grillage were wired at 
the crossings of the other half of the grillage, and the full 
top grillage was wired to the full bottom grillage by wires 
running through the mattress.

Q.—I call your attention, Captain, to contract No. 0,517, 
Atlantic ( ontraeting Company, contract of October 8th 1S90, 
for Cumberland Sound, marked Exhibit 86. Look at the 
tirst design of mattress in that contract; that is the raft of 
round logs not less titan 12 inches, and so on, with brush etc.
1 )ot-s that mattress or any part of it correspond for a mat­
tress with the description in the tirst design in that con­
tract ?

A.—It does not,.
Q.—Look at the second design in that contract No. 0,517, 

and state whether the mattress which you inspects*! at that 
time, which was to lie put in by the contractor under that 
contract, corresponded to the second design i

A.—It did not.
Q.—Look at the third design specified in that contract 

and state whether the mattress which you saw being put in at 
that time correspmded with the third design ?

A.—It did not.
Q.—Did it. come anywhere near to any of these three de­

signs, and if so which of the designs did it come the nearest 
to ?

A.—The third design.
Q.—Now ( 'aptain, I will take up the language of the third 

design in that specification to the contract, Cumberland 
Sound No. 6,517 of October 8th 1890. I will first ask you 
in reference to each course of mattress, considering that 
there are eight courses in that lot of brush that was on 
that barge. Take the first course ?

Mr. Rose:—Front which sitde, top or bottom ?
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Mr. Erwin :—Well, ,ve will toko it from the bottom.
Q.—(Continued). And I will ask you now to state 

whether the first course corresponded to this description of 
the design : “ This mattress will consist of a bottom grillage 
of poles of live saplings of pine or other timber of a kind 
approved by the engineer officer in charge”. Did that bottom 
course have a bottom grillage of poles ?

A.—It did.
Q.—Take the next feature of the description of poles: 

“The poles must l>e straight, of slight taper and of an aver­
age diameter of front four to five inches and not less than 
three inches at the small end, and must be placed from four 
to eight feet apart between the centres.”

Mr. Rose :—May 1 ash one question before answering 
that i

Q.—(By Mr. Rose.).—Captain, did you go under the 
mat i

A.—Yes sir.
Q.—Yourself ?
A.—Personally.
Q.—Under it ?
A.—Under it, yes sir.
Q.—You did not state that liefore, and that is the reason 

I ask it?
A.—1 es, I staled that I verified the soundings from the 

lower end when it reached the bottom.
Q.—Komcliodv else did ?
A.—I stated I checked some of them. I was on top and 

checked the reading, and I went underneath and took some 
of the soundings. I could not be in both places at the same 
time. I may not have stated so; I did, however.

Q.—(By Mr. Erwin). Answer that question, Captain ?
A.—The poles used in the bittern grillage did not corres­

pond with the specifications. They were very much smaller 
in diameter; they did not average from four to five inches, 
and there was none of them as large as three inches at the 
small end. They were placed just within that specification.
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il say» from 4 to 8 feet. They were placed fully 8 feet or 
a tritlo more if anything front centre to centre.

Q.—Additional language of the specification in regard 
to the polos that they "must lie placed 4 to 8 feet apart lie- 
twocn centres, both le iiudinully and transversely and 
spliced together with long scarfed joints in a manner satis­
factory to the engineer officer in charge !"

A.—They were not so spliced; they were- simply lapped 
and wired.

CJ.—Now, this additional feature: “Upon this grillage 
will lie placed a layer of closely compacted fascines sur­
mounted by a top grillage similar in design to the one at the 
bottom". Now first in regard to the layer of closely com­
pacted fascines?

A.—They were not there.
Q.—Well now, describe what was there that in any way 

conformed to a fascine !
A.—A layer id' very loose brush which was possibly looselv 

bound into bundles and tied with lath yarn. 1 remember 
seeing a few ties of lath yarn which you had to hunt to find. 
While 1 only found a few of them, 1 believe all the brush 
was so bundled.

(j.—Well, what made the brush bundle lose its identity 
there, Captain?

A.—It was so loose that it spread out and it does not 
corns ’ to the specifications in that they were not closely 
compacted and they were not closely compacted fascines. 
They could be described its loosely t its 1, or loosely compacted 
bundles.

(j.—Now the latter part of that description which 1 read; 
that is to sav “surmounted by a top grillage similar in design 
to the one at the bottom" Ï

A.—It was not so surmounted. There was only a half 
grillage there.

Q.—That is only one?
A.—Poles running one way across the mattress 8 feet 

apart. No poles at right angles to them. There was no 
such grillage on top of the lower course.

24
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Q.—L<x>k at the further description in these specificaitons 
in regard to that third design of mattress. “ The poles of 
each grillage will be securely fastened together by suitable 
wire or rojK) lashings, and the upper and lower grillages will 
also be securely fastened together in such maner as the 
engineer officer in charge may approve ?”

A.—The [H>lea of the lower grillage were wired together. 
The poles of the upper grillage could of course not lie wired 
together as there was only a half grillage there, anil I could 
find no fastening connections that top half with the lower 
full grillage disregarding all of the mattress except the lower 
course as you specified.

(.).—Now take the next course of the mattress on top of the 
course which you just descrilied?

A.—It would lie described as precisely—as the same as 
the other, with the exception that taking the half grillage 
on top of the lower course ns applying to the lower course, 
there was no grillage at all for the Iwttom of the second 
course; only a half grillage on top of the second course. 
These poles were deficient and the bundles were not fas­
cines and were no 1 letter than those in the bottom course as 
far as could lie seen. Whether they were wires! together 
or not of course I do not know. They were not wired at the 
outside. They might have been inside.

Q.—Then Captain Gillette if these two courses had lieen 
mattresses constructed strictly according to those specifica­
tions, and the one mattress laid on top of the other, there 
would have lsfii liehveen the lower course of mattress and 
the next course, two complete grillages, wouldn’t there?

A.—Yes, sir.
Q.—Tlitat would have made four courses of poles ?
A.—And four half grillages.
Q.—Four half grillages of poles. That is, at the top 

of the lower course there would lie a complete grillage be­
longing to that course, and then there would be the liottom 
grillage of the other mat.ress?

A.—Yes, belonging to it.
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Q.—But in point of fact there was only a half grillage i
A.—For both of them.
Q.—For both of them between the two mattresses?
A.—Yes, sir.
(}.—Now, did that same construction—does that same 

description of construction apply throughout that entire 
eight courses of brush on the barge, with the exception that 
there was a full grillage on the first—on the top of the 
fourth tier, and a full grillage at the top of the complete 
brush<

A.—It does. There was a full grillage on top of the 
whole mattress; there was a half grillage between the two 
sections of the mattress of different lengths but pissibly a 
full grillage ; a full grillage only showed at the ends. To 
the best of my memory, however, those cross-poles did not 
go through, so that between the two tiers, as you call them, 
of the mattress there was really only a half grillage, except­
ing at each end one extra pile was laid across.

(j.—Then by putting in the eight courses of mattress at 
one time, if the Government was paying for each of those 
courses as a complete mattress, was it getting the full amount 
of piles specified in this third design !

A.—It was not; it was only getting a fraction over one- 
third the proper amount, in this particular case ; less than 
one-third ; a fraction less than one-third.

Q.—You say you tried to walk across the mattress ?
A.—Yes, I tried to walk across it.
Q.—Was that just in one place of the mattress it could 

not lie done?
A.—I went all over it; it was the same everywhere. If 

you wanted to go nerosv it with any degree of speed or com­
fort you had to walk a pole or grillage of p>lea. Almost 
anywhere you stepped you were liable to go in two feet or 
the whole length of vour leg. I went in the length of my 
legs at least half a dozen times. Possibly, by carefully 
pieking the place you were going to step each time on tlio
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larger piece of brush you could get across otherwise, but 
iu crossing the mattress 1 walked the pole every time.

Cj.—Did you make any other investigation to find out 
whether the same work was—1 mean the work was being put 
in under these contracts at Savannah and Brunswick hi the 
same way (

A.—Yes, sir.
Q.—Did your discovery in regard to that lead to the 

investigation which was afterwards made ?
A.—Yes, sir.
Q.—Captain Gillette, did you have a mattress made at 

that tune, or shortly thereafter, to conform to the sjieeifica- 
tions in that contractt

Mr. /,’osr : As he understood them or interpreted them ?
Mr. Ervin : Yes, as you understood it.
A.—I had a mattress made at that time, as the inspectors 

understood the interpretation. 1 gave orders to have a mat­
tress made which should consist of four mattres-es of the 
specifications third design, piled one on top of the other. I 
gave no instructions whatever as to how to make those mat 
tresses.

Q.(By Mr. Hone)—Was that order in writing?
A.—No, sir ; verbal. I gave no instructions whatever 

except to make the mattress according to the specifications. 
As 1 recall it, I did not even discuss the details of the speci­
fications with the assistant engineer to whom I gave the order. 
Certainly he had no copy of the specifications there. As I 
remember it, 1 sent him a copy. Possibly 1 may have re- 
Jieated the order in writing; I won't lie positive. I am 
jxisitivc however, 1 gave him no detailed instructions. In 
obedience to that order, a mattress was made which T in- 
sijH'eted. At the same time there had been kept in the Bay 
near the office, the first mattress that came from the con­
tractor’s work, built without instructions, or the second one. 
Two came out. the same day. One of them was allowed to 
go in the work ; the other was retained. When the com­
posite mattress, consisting of four mattresses on top of each
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other, a ml ou top of the barge, was ready, 1 went agaiu 
to Feruandina aud inspected the two mattresses. Thu ouu 
built by the eontraetors without instructions from me wits 
like the one 1 first inspected, excepting it was a great deal 
better. There was a great deal mure brush in it. 1 could 
walk across it with reasonable comfort. The bundles were 
made with more brush in them and they were jammed up 
together alongside each other with some degree of force. 
The whole tiling was a much botter mattress. The mattress 
which 1 had ordered made was made according to my ideas 
of the specifications, with one exception. The bundles were 
tight, full of brush in good slut[Fe, had some strength and 
sysitem to them, but the brush was not trimmed. The bun­
dles bad been trimmed so that to the casual glance outside 
my ideas had been complied with. My ideas of the s|ieciti- 
cations were that the brush should lie trimmed. The in­
spector in carrying those out had made a good substantial 
fascine of untrimmed brush, and then trimmed the fascine; 
trimmed all the brush that was sticking out. With that 
exception the mattress was made—and one more exception— 
made according to my ideas of flic specifications, excepting 
that I did not require, or with the exception that the con­
tractor had not made the lashing or splicing of the grillage 
poles with a scarfed joint. The piles were of the proper 
size and were lashed together. These mattresses were then, 
at my direction, weighed by the assistant engineer and mea­
sured, which measurement was verified lie myself. "Redneed 
to square yards the square yards of the contractor's mattress 
—or it took 227 square yards of the contractor’s mattress 
to weigh. — — —

Q.—Who was the man that weighed it ?
A.—Marion Twiggs, assistant engineer.
Q.—In your presence?
A.—Xo; In- weighed it bv displacement and made me an 

official report on the subject 
Q.—Is lie living?
A.—Xo, he is dead.
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Q.—Did the contractor put in the mattress which was on 
the barge, the one you first inspected, and the photographs 
of which are here ?

A.—Yes, sir; that mattress went into the work.
Q.—Well, explain how it was put in?
A.—They towed it out to the position, had two tugs and a 

couple of lighters of stone as anchors and they got the barge 
upon which it was located at the right place, and theyr 
dropped it, as they call it ; knocked out sup|>orts from one 
side of the mattress so that the mattress and the work on 
which it was located tipped to a sharp angle, and the mattress 
with some inducement slid off into the water ; was aligned 
by means of poles fastened to it, and sunk bv throwing rock 
into it and upon it. The first rook that was thrown was a 
rock two or three times the size of a man’s head, and it dived 
right into the mattress out of sight completely. After they 
had piled up a number in that way, they began to show 
above the surface of the mattress, and the mattress gradually 
sank out of sight. It had very little buoyancy when first 
put in the water. Only a small portion of it apjieared above 
the water, and as it sunk an appreciable percentage of the 
mattress floated off as leaves,

Q.—(By Mr. Bose). Green leaves ?
A.—It was green when put in the mattress, but getting 

dry.
Q.—How long had it been cut ?
A.—1 don’t suppose over two or three days. It was green 

brush, but the leaves had become sufficiently dry so that when 
it went into the water, the water was a bed of leaves almost, 
I was astonished to see so many come.”

In the 189(1 contract on Cumberland Sound, Captain 
Gillette says that the mattresses were not even according to 
the specifications 3rd design. Besides, the fascines making 
tip these mattresses did not appear to be properly choked, 
and did not in several particulars comply to the requirements 
of the specifications. They were not tied at intervals of two 
feet as required, they were not tightly compressed as they 
ought to lie ; the brush was not straight and not trimmed, no
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limbs trimmed off, and were not of the proper length.
To make them of the length required by the specifications 

would have required a great deal more time and care, and 
the mattresses would have hud to lie built near the shore, 
either on ways on the shore or ways on a lighter moored 
along the shore, and not in the brush camps. The first mat­
tress that Captain Gillette inspected did not contain one- 
third of the material that went into the making of a mattress 
ordered by him to be made according to the s|ieeifications of 
contract No. 6517, 1890.

In the first design of mattress of contract 6517, October 
8th, 1890, with the Atlantic Contracting Company, for Cum­
berland Sound, there is enormously more material than there 
was in any layer of that first mattress lie inspeeted, leaving 
out the logs entirely, which alone he estimates at forty cents 
per square yard, and which were wanting, and he estimates 
that the cost of putting in a square yard of log mattress of 
the first design to 1*; five times more than what he saw go in.

COOPER’S DEPOSITION.

Arthur S. Cooper was Assistant Engineer under Carter 
in 1892 and 1896, and hud supervision of the entire work 
under contract of October 8th, 1896, with The Atlantic Con­
tracting Company for Savannah Harbour. This witness 
says that he saw nine-tenths of the mattresses going into the 
work under the 1892 and 1896 contracts; that they were 
made of several courses put one on top of the other, making 
one multiple mat and sunk altogether; that there were no 
Government inspectors in the brush camps; that Carter 
knew of the manner in which the mattresses were built, and 
stateil that he was satisfied with it; that he was asked once 
by Carter to give false certificates as to the apparent number 
of courses in multiple mats; that he only had the opportunity 
to examine the mattresses from the outside, as they were 
brought from the brush camps ready to be sunk.

On March 10th, 1897, Mr. Cooper wrote to Captain Carter 
calling his attention to the fact that there was not sufficient 
stone on a certain breakwater at Savannah and recommended
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an additional stone covering to keep the worm» (Teredo) 
from destroying it, and keep the mats from being washed 
away. Carter paid no attention to the recommendation.

The following is a résumé of the deposition of Cooper:
He testifies that when the work under tile 1892 contract 

was commenced, the mats were put in singly, and each mat 
towed to position and sunk by itself, hut later on, the con­
tractors used three courses at a time, sunk off the end of a 
gin harge making continuous mats. That kind of work was 
commenced in IMUi bv the contractors, and is known as the 
multiple mats, that is, the entire height of the dam was built 
on barges and sunk in place at one time, one launching— 
these mats averaged uhnit seven courses. Logs were placed 
on a gin barge in such a manner that the mats could lie 
dumped off into the water ami sunk into the required posi­
tion. There was usually a row of piles driven, atnl the hargo 
brought up to the piles and the gins tipped so that the mat­
tress would slide off into the water against the piles, and then 
the mattress was loaded with stone a it went to the lmttoin.

Coo|K-r states that under the 1892 and 189l> contracts for 
Savannah Harbour there was as a rule no inspectors in the 
mat camps. There had been some instances where inspectors 
were placed in charge of the mat camps, and kept there for 
a month or possibly two months, and then they would bo 
taken away again, but there was no regular inspector at the 
mat camps. This is true of both contracts of 1892 and 1890, 
except that in the 1890 contracts there was no inspector at 
all in the mat camps.

Cooper never saw the mats until they were brought to the 
liver camps for placing in the work. They were brought 
there complete, ready for use, and he had no opportunity of 
seeing them except from the outside. It was impossible to 
tell exactly what the interior was composed of. In some in­
stances he examined, and had an opportunity of examining, 
the inside of them. In one case particularly one of the in­
spectors called his attention to a hollow space in the mat, 
and when he examined it, he found he could see daylight



through the nuit, which was supjioeed to be ten feet thick— 
a seven course mat. He went into the mat, in fact went 
down through the mat clear to the deck. The o[kmi space 
was as large as an ordinary office desk, ami right in the 
centre. He reported this fact to Captain Carter, who said 
that he would put an inspector, hut lie did not put any.

Carter had op|Kirtunities to see what was going on. He 
ealled Coojier's attention to the mode of construction when 
Coo[ier took charge of the work in 1893, and told him he 
wanted the work constructed in that manner, that is, in the 
manner he found it lieing constructed in 1893, and Cisiper 
carried on the work just as directed by Carter, and just as 
In found It going on. Whenever the work seemed deterior­
ating or slackening, Coo|*‘r culled Carter’s attention to it, 
and also reported it to the contractor.

Cooper states that in the actual construction of the mul­
tiple mat under the 1892 contract, instead of constructing 
each mattress with the full complement of ]iolvs required for 
each mattress under the speeifieations, that i<, giving two 
complete grillages of poles between each mattress that there 
was not in fact put in even one full grillage of poles, lint 
only a half grillage, that is, the fascines of the respective 
mattresses were only separated by a layer of poles eight feet 
apart running one way. This method of construction was 
used in the 1896 contract.

Cooper stati - that Carter in his instructions told him to 
report in certain circumstances a certain number of courses 
in the mat whether they were there or not, which lie declined 
to do.

The following is the letter of Cooper of date 10th March, 
1897, already referred to,

Tyhce Island, Ga.,
Capt. O. M. Carter, March 10th, 1897.

Corps of Eng’s U.S.A.,
Savannah, Ga.

Sir:—
1 have the honor to report that I have this day made a 

careful examination of the Breakwater. There is no doubt
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of the fact that the mats that have been sunk have not sanded 
up in the least. At places where I was able to shove a pole 
through the mats the hard sand bottom was exactly the same 
depth as it was 100 feet outside of the dam ; and also at the 
edges of the mat there has lx-en no piling up of the sand as 
would naturally he expected. In fact at some places there 
is actually a scour. It is therefore evident that no sanding 
will take place, or at least not until the crest is brought up 
much higher, probably high enough to stop the ebb flow en­
tirely at low water. I would recommend that the present 
mat work l>e either stopped or slaekcned up and what is 
already laid he covered over with snffieient roeks to prevent 
the worms from destroying it.

This should be done also on account of the danger of loos­
ing the mats already placed by the action of severe storms. 
There are two places that have already been considerably 
damaged, say for about 100 feet in length of the wall. I 
would further recommend that no mats be left with less than 
about 300 cubic yards of stone on them ; and would give it 
as my opinion that about 150 to 200 cubic yards for each 
100 feet in length should be put on the old work as soon as 
possible.

Very Respectfully,
Your obd’t serv’t,

A. S. COOPER,
Asst. Eng’r.

Cooper testifies that in 1893 one W. G. Austin was em­
ployed by Carter for some time ns inspector upon the recom­
mendation of Benjamin D. Greene, one of the accused.

Captain Gillette not being satisfied with the manner in 
which the work was being carried on under the 1896 con­
tracts reported the matter to his chief officer, and an inves­
tigation was ordered to be made by a Board of Enquiry. 
Some papers and documents left by Carter in a file case in 
his late office at Savannah, were then detained, and by the



stub- of tbo cheque 1 winks ami receipts fourni therein, his 
]« rsiuial expenses and disbursements fur the year 1890 were 
traced to the enormous sum of $2S,011.0T.

It is proven that before 1891 Captain Carter was poor, 
and bad been frequently borrowing money from the accused 
Benjamin D. Greene. Moreover it was discovered that 
Captain Carter had become a great capitalist, having ac­
quired from January, 1893, to May 1:2th, 1*90, $001,471.50 
worth of securities. This great wealth was acquired while 
Carter was so employed as local engineer by the United 
States for the District of Savannah while a great number of 
contracts bad lx-cn let out by bint to the accused at very high 
prices, and is unexplained.

Mr. R. F. Wcscott, bis father-in-law, a rich man, 
testifies that he never gave anything worth mentioning to his 
daughter, beyond the furniture of a house, and a couple of 
thousand dollars.

It is shown bv the lxwiks of .1. L. Gallagher, lmokkeeper 
of The Atlantic Contracting Company, and the examination 
of the accounts of the Atlantic Contracting Company in the 
local banks of Savannah that the cost to the contractors of 
the total work under the contracts of 1.890 was for Savannah 
$97,812.99 and for Cumberland Sound $108,150.31. For 
Savannah Harbour they received on the sixth of July, 1S97, 
$230,749.00 and for the work done in August, 1897, $31,- 
159.40, making in all $201,909.30, anil it is in evidence that 
the contractors are still claiming under this contract 
$350,000.

For Cumberland Sound they received on the said 0th of 
July, 1897, $435,000 and they are still claiming $000,739.02.

It is proven that the introduction of three designs of mat­
tress, two of superior quality and value, and a third of very 
inferior value, in the specifications for work to lie let out ir 
the district of Savannah, the three to lx- within the selection 
of the engineer in charge, and to lx* tendered for at one price 
for the three designs, was an innovation of Carter’s. The 
very high prices at which the contracts of 1890 were made



out are striking when compared with similar work on the 
contracts la-fore 181)2. Exhibit 1 !»:! shows that the prices 
for brush mattress, third design was 1)4 cents per cubic yard 
in 1880 : $1.40 in 1800 for mattresses of latter qualify : were 
$3.40 in 1891, $3.80 and $4.20 in 1802, and $3.'s0 and 
$4.40 in 1806 for mattresses third design, that is to say a 
very inferior quality in comparison with the others.

I mler the 1800 contracts the mattresses were lmilt under 
e system called multiple mats n< has been stated by Gillette 
and Cooper, that is, a number of mats were constructed on 
a barge, one on top of the other, making a pile sometimes 
of six or eight or more mats, a multiple mat the entire height 
of the dam lieing built, on the barge, and stink in place at 
one launching. The reading of these specifications in the 
1806 contracts in reference to mattresses does not convince 
one that this system of construction was the one apparently 
contemplated.

The following is an extract from section 37 of contract 
6515 of October Mb, 18116, for Savannah:

“ Xo mattress will be accepted until properly placed in 
the work and secured there by a layer of stone id' such thick- 
ncss ns may be required by the Engineer Officer in charge. 
Gups between the edges of adjacent sections of mattress will 
be filled with stone bv the contractor, to lw- paid for at a price 
equal to the price of mattress work. Portions of the mat­
tress lying more than four feet outside of the position as­
signed will not lx- accepted or paid for. Separate bids for 
the designs for mattresses are not desired. One price only 
should be given in the proposals and the price so stated will 
be understood as referring to any of the designs which may 
be required by the engineer officer in charge."

The latter part of section 38 in contract 6,517 of October 
8th, 181)6, for Cumberland Sound is in exactly similar terms.

These specifications refer to one mattress only, and not to 
a course of several mattresses, and provide for proper grill- 
lfiges of [wles in each mattress, and of a layer of stone on
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each maître*, and the witnesses Ciwqivr and Gillette say tluit 
the multiple mats were deficient in jmles and hmslt, and 
naturally did not have oil each of them a proper layer of 
stone, for the whole construction wax stink at a time, that is 
to say, allowed to slide from a gin barge and when in position, 
loaded with stone until it sank.

The fascines also for these mattresses were not of the 
prosier length, and were brought from the brush camps ready 
made, which would not have liecn possible if they had been 
of the proper length, says Gillette, for then they would have 
had to lie hauled to the place where the mattress was living 
constructed, and re-made properly.

A similar construction and system were in force at Sa­
vannah says Cooper.

Moreover, it was impossible to examine the internal cons­
truction of these multiple mats. Anv layman will easily see 
the ilmmense saving to the contractors in timlier, stone and 
labour such a construction afforded, and also the time spared 
in the sinking of an eight course mattress instead of sinking 
each mattress separately.

One understands at once the large opening for fraud ad­
duced by the construction of these multiple mats, and the 
manner in which it affected the work as far as solidity, dura­
bility, and value to the United States are concerned.

Captain Gillette saw the work at Cumlterland Sound only 
after the Oth of July 1MI". It was then carried on in the 
same manner as at Savannah llarlsiur and the presumption 
is that it was so before he saw it, because the contractors 
were the same, the nature of the work was the same, and the 
manager of the work at Cumberland Sound, William T. 
Gavnor, had liecn managing the work for some time at 
Savannah llarlsiur with Edward If. Gavnor.

The manner in which these contracts were let out to the 
contractors was looked into by the United States authorities, 
and the circumstances accompanying the transaction were 
enquired into. It was found that the accused had succeeded 
in suppressing conqietition in reference to the 18i)li contracts. 
This in proven by the deposition of W. II. Venable. This
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gentleman, a contractor and owner of quarries, testified that 
lie intended to hid on these contractu for Savannah Harbour, 
and Cumberland Sound. He went to Savannah for this pur­
pose, and whilst there he was met by accused (laynor, who 
offered to take from him all the stone required for the cons­
truction of the work advertised for if he would not hid him­
self for it, in ease The Atlantic Contracting Company got 
the contracts, which proposed arrangement was subserilied 
to by Gaynor, Greene and himself. Mr. Venable affirms tliat 
Gaynor aske*I him to deliver to him the thri-e copies of sjieei- 
fications that lie had obtained from Carter with great diffi­
culty, as is shown by the correspMi,,|enoo cxelmnged lietween 
Barrows A sborne, Attorneys, and Carter. Gaynor said 
that he had collected all the other copies of specifications 
sent out.

The contracts were made out to The Atlantic Contracting 
Company at the high prices that we know. Tl stone to lie 
used under these contracts of 189(i « ,-h estimated at 350,000 
tons and a very gissl price was promised i<> Is- paid to Mr. 
Venable for it, hut instead of Having to furnish such a large 
quantity he was only required by the contractors to furnish 
a very small quantity, to the value of only $1,000 a.s no more 
was used by the contractors, brush I icing substituted for the 
stone.

Mir. Venable says in his deposition that when lie went to 
Carter’s office, he was introduced into his private office, and 
that ho was asked by Carter if he intended to bid, and having 
answered in the affirmative Carter told liitm that no money 
had liecn voted yet by Congress for the work, and that the 
contractors would have to advance the money themselves for 
the construction, that to undertake this work it. required an 
equipment of at least $400,000, that a large tramway would 
have to lie built out in the sea at Cumberland Sound by the 
contractors to dump the stone, which would cost many thou­
sands of dollars. He could not learn from Carter which 
design of mattress would be called for. Now, the equipment 
of The Atlantic Contracting Company for this work was 
valued at $26,932.50, and no trestle had to be built by the
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contractors, and the whole cost of equipment and work at 
Savannah and Cumberland Sound did not exceed $200,000 
as has already been seen in the deposition of Gallagher. 
When -Mr. Venable had completed his arrangement for fur­
nishing tlie stone to be required for the work 1!. It. Greene 
showed him a bid which he luul prepared .which was $200,- 
000 lower than the hid filed and on which the contracts 
were let out.

The specifications for contracts of Octolier Mit 1 s'.iii, 
Cumberland Sound only, numlter 0,517, assumed that 
200,000 cubic yards of maîtres- work, 50,000 tons of first 
class stone, 420,000 cubic yards of stone of other classes
would la- required for the work under this contract........ liv
reason of a change said by Captain Greene to Mr. Venable 
to have been made, instead of 200,000 square yards of mat­
tress assumed in the specification to Ik- required for this 
work 440,102 square yards of mattress, third design (the 
worst for the government, and the most profitable for the 
contractors, especially when it is considered that, even he 
specifications as to this were far from being complin! with) 
were used.

Another tiling to be considered in reference to the letting 
out of these 1806 contracts is the shortness of tin- advertise­
ment given to the public and intending bidders, for becom­
ing acquainted with the fact that contracts for the pnqiosvd 
work were to lie let out, and consequently for the prepa­
ration of bids. The advertisements for these IsHi contracts 
which were one million dollar contract for Savannah Har­
bour and a two million dollar contract for Cumberland 
Sound, were only printed for 2il days in the local papers, 
and 111 days in the engineering paja rs. The regulations were 
to publish advertisements of the. letting out of large con- 
tracts for at least thirty daw. A noticeable fact in connre- 
tion with the advertisement for these two contracts is, that 
although they were really published on August 17th. IMUt, 
calling for bids to lie opened on September > h lMlli, by 
special orders from Carter, they bore the date dune 0th 
180(1. This is the date they were originally prepared by
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him for approval at Washington. The reason for this parti­
cular deceit is not known.

I'nder ordinary eircumstanocs some of the facts imme­
diately recited would Is1 of small imjtortance, hut when such 
fraud has been perpetrated they an- liable to become links 
in the chain lending to proof of criminality.

A transaction of great signifleanc in this ease is the deli­
very, in the early part of September, 1897, by Carter, of all 
his securities to Greene and Gavtior, and the returning of 
them by Greene to Mr. 11. 1'. Wcsteott, and by Wcstcott to 
Carter on October 29th, 1897. Carter had left for England 
to till his new position in the latter part of July ls97, hut 
had suddenly come hack in the Iteginning of September. Mr. 
Wcstcott says that Carter told him then that lie expected to 
he arrested, that he had taken all his securities to Greene 
and Guvnor at the Hoffman House, that he felt he had made 
a mistake in doing so, and wanted Wcsteott to take charge 
id' them, which finally Wcstcott consented to do. Carter told 
him that Greeno and G ay nor would bring the securities to 
Wcstcott the next day at ten o’clock. They did not bring 
them at that time, and on telephoning to them, Gaynor re­
plied to Wcsteott that they had changed their minds and 
were not going to bring the Itonds. The next day however, 
Greene brought the bom Is to Wcstcott’s house, Wcstcott took 
Greeno to the safety Deposit Company, where they were de- 
posited in Wcstcott’s Istx. Afterwards, about the lltli Oc­
tober 1897, on Greeno asking him, he (Wcstcott) turned 
over some of the bonds to Carter and on the 29th October 
1897 ho turned over the balance to him (Carter) aud took 
a receipt which is in this form :

Received, New York, Octolier 29th, 1897, from 11. F. 
Wcstcott, the following instruments:

5 Chcs. A Ohio, 5s. 21025, 21020, 21027, 21028, 21029. 
laist Coupon, Nov. 1S97.

15 Del. & Hud. 7s. 1649, 1648, 841, 528, 293, 122, 842, 
840, 593, 125, 124, 123, 121, 83, 82. Last'Coupon, 
Sept., 1897.
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10 Chic., St. P., Minn., iV Oui., Us. 21117, 2111*, 21123, 
21110, 20242, 102*2, 10072, 10102, 15020, 2003. 
l-ti-st Coupon, Dec., ’97.

15 Clii. N. W„ 7s. 13210, 13213, 13212, 13211, 13200, 
13210, 13200, 13207, 13200, 13205, 7527, 7520, 
7525, 7524, 7523. Lust Cou|ton, Xov., 1*97.

oO 1 nitcil X. ,1., 4s. s11,,o, si,.,l, sii,12, S0,i3, si;;,j, so55, 
*050, 8057, 8058, *059. Dist Coiipou, Sept., 1807. 
17312, 17313. 17314. 17315, 17310, 17300, 17307,
17308, 17300, 17400, 18442, 1*143. 18444, 1*445,
10170, 10180, 10307, 10308, 10300. 10400. List
(’oupon, Sept., 1807.

10 Mil. Lake Sli. jv West, Os. 007, 008, 000, 845, *44, 
*43, 847, 840, *48, *30. Lust Coupon, Xov,, 1807.

50 Ding Dock, Os. 2001, 2002. 2003, 2004, 2005, 2000,
2007, 200.8, 2000, 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014,
2015, 2010, 2017. 201*. 20*0. 2000, 2001, 2002,
2003, 2005, 2000, 2007. 2008, 2000, 2700, 3011
3010, 3000, 360*, 3007, 3000, 3005, 3004, 300.3. 
3002, 2202, 2201. 803, *02. 183. 1*2, 181. ISO, 
2*37, 2*30, 2004. Ln«t Coupon, Oot., 1807.

30 X*. V. Lack. & West., 0s. 11350, 11340, 11348, 11347, 
11340, 11315, 11314, 11313, 11312, 11311, 11310,
11300, 11308, 11307, 11300, 11305, 11304, 11303,
11302, 11301, 0500, 0400. 040*. 0407, 0400, 0105, 
0401, 8537, *530, 8535. Last Coupon. Jan., 1*0*. 
(O. M. C.).

5 X. J. June., 4s. 040, 041, 1250, 125*. 1480. Last
Coupon, Kelt., 180*.

20 X. V. Lack. ,V West. 5s. 1030, 1037, 1044, 1045,
1038, 1171, 1172. 1030, 1173, 1174, 1040, 1175, 
1170, 1041, 1177, 1042, 1178, 1170, 1043, 1180. 
Last Coupon, Fcb., 1898.
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10 Morris & Essex, 7s. 8114, 8113, 8112, 8111, 8110,
8100, 2083, 140.1, 030s, 9307. Last Coupon, Dee.,
1807.

3 Morris A- Essex, 41s. 848, 1120, 1121. Last Coupon,
Jan., 1898.

5 Wabash, 1). A- C., .Is. 1730, 1021, 1786, 1731, 1738. 
Last Coupon, July, 1807.

10 Chi., Mil. k St. I’., 7s. .1447, 5446, 544.1, .1444, 0318,
5440 .12.1, .1441, 5442, 5443. Last Coupon, Jan.,
1808.

4 U. S„ 5s. 17461, 174.18, 17456, 17453. List Coupon,
Nov., 1807.

2 Certificates for 100 shares each in e stock of Del.
A' Hud. Canal Co., Nos. 25MJ8, 25800, in my name. 

2 Receivers Certificates II. A O. Il.li. Go., for $5.000.00 
each, Nos. 701 and 702, Coupons Dec. 1, 1S07, at­
tached.

7 Promissory Notes of T. M. Cunningham to Robert F. 
Westcott, for $275.00 each, dated June 20, ls05. 
Endorsed “ without recourse,” by Iiobt. F. Westcott. 

Decsl to secure foregoing notes and others by T. M. Cun­
ningham to Robert F. Westcott, dated June 20th, 
1895.

1 Promissory note of Beirne Gordon to R. F. Westcott 
for $10,000.00 and

9 Promissory notes of same to same for $300.00 each, all 
of said notes being dated Nov. 4th, 1800, and en­
dorsed “ without recourse," by R. F. Westcott.

Deed Beirne Gordon to R. P. Westcott, dated Nov. 4th, 
1800, to secure foregoing notes and others.

1 Promissory note of John Lyons to Rol>ert F. Westcott 
for $15,000.00 with covenant of Insurance, etc., an­
nexed, dated June 20th, 180.1. (O. M. C.)

1 Promissory note by John Lyons to Robert F. Westcott 
for $15,000.00, dated June 20th, 180.1, and endorsed 
“ without recourse ” by the payee.

1 Promissory note of same to same, of same date, similarly 
endorsed, for $450.00.

5
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1 1* unisso rv note of saint* to same, of saint' date, eimilarlv 
endorsed, for $450.00.

Deed to stfiire foregoing notes anti others, by John Lyons 
to Hubert F. Westeott, tinted June JOtli, 1805.

1 Certificate of Insurance, ilatetl June 30th, 1805, exeeuted 
by Dearing Ar Hull, agents.

Deed, J. XV. Howie and J. F. liragg, as executors to H. F.
Westeott, dated Xov. -Till, 1804.

Policy of Insurance to Robert F. Westeott of title to pro­
perty conveyed in foregoing deed.

Bond and Mortgage, Thomas Martin to O. M. Carter, dated 
Xov. Kill, 181)5. ,

Receipt, A. Minis to O. M. Carter, dated Xov. 11th, ls!l(j. 
Receipt, Thomas Martin to A. Minis, attv., dated Xov. iMst, 

181)5.
OtlEhl.IX M. Caktf.k.

Kndoreed on l>aek : ,
—RECEIPT—

When (ireene so delivered Carter's sicurities to "Westeott, 
he made to him the surprising statement that these securities 
were his, Westcott's. as lie was their ((Ireene and (laynor's) 
partner in .these 181)0 contracts, which fact Westeott ener­
getically denied. Those securities brought to Westeott by 
C,reçue and turned over to Carter by Westeott. at cost price, 
including the securities and property already in Carter's 
possession, represented a value of $570,801.85. The pro­
secution claim that the real partner to Gnynor and (ireene 
Was Carter himself.

As the Government funds for these contracts of 181)0 
were only to lie available on July 1st, 1807, the contractors 
had to advance the money themselves for the purpisc of 
carrying along flu* work. Mr. Johnson, an expert account­
ant. and bank examiner, has established that during the pro­
gress of the 1800 work, the Guvnors had advanced $43,500, 
and Greene an amount of $80,350, made up by a $50,000 
loan made to him by Carter's father-in-law, at the request 

3
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of Carter. Mr. Johnson lias also established that the pro­
ceeds of the two cheques of $230,740.90 and of $345,000 
were not evenly divided between Gaynor and Greene, Gav- 
nor getting on the 0th of July, 1M»7, a share equivalent to 
one-third, tin- advances made by both being reimbursed, 
whilst two-thirds remained in the possession of Greene. lie, 
on the sth of July invested $172,000, apparently of this 
money, in the purchase of $150,000 United States l>on<ls. 
The profits to Ik* taken out of these two cheques divided in 
three, would, according to the witness Johnson, have made 
$126,691.07, which amount with the $50,000 loan by West- 
cott to Greene at Carter’s request, would make $170,700,07, 
about the amount invested by Greene on July Sth. in United 
States bonds, of which he had on August 0th a portion sold 
for $22,700, when he repaid $21,000 to Westcott.

It is pointed out by the prosecution that the supposed 
fraudulent claims and vouchers upon which the two cheques 
of the Oth of July were paid to accused, were prepared for 
them by Carter’s confidential clerk, W A. Oonnollv, he 
signing the name of Edward TT. Gaynor, Secretary of The 
Atlantic Contracting Company.

Before succeeding to General Gillmore whose headquarters 
were in Xew York, Captain Carter was Resident Engineer 
at Savannah since August 19th, 1884. The accused got 
their first contract in this engineering district of Savannah 
on September 1st, 1884. Since that time they were fortun­
ate enough to capture all the contracts less one, for work let 
out in the district, amounting to 28 in number, of which the 
following is a correct list :

Savannah River and Harbour.
2744, September 1st, 1884, John F. Gaynor, Contractor. 
3282, October 2 Sth, 1886, John F. G amor. Contractor. 
3890, January 16th, 1889, Win. T. Gaynor, Contractor. 
4224, Xovember 5th, 1890, John F. Gaynor, Contractor. 
4960, October 22nd, 1892, Atlantic Contracting Company.

Contractor.
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6515, October Mil, 1890, Savannah Harbour, Vtlantic Con­
tracting Company, Contractor.

( umberluud Sound.
2824, September 27, l8sj, Lara and Ross, Ci ntFactors. 
32s5, October 29, l88t>, An-on M. Bangs, (Contractor.
3905, January 31, 18811, Anson M. Bangs, Contractor. 
4572, May 4, 1891, John F. Oaynor, Contractor.
4820, September 16, 1802, Kd. il. (laynor, Contractor. 
5811, November 15, 1804, Anson M. Bangs, Contractor. 
6517, October 8th, 1806, Atlantic Contracting Company.

Brunswick Harbour.
3507, Octolier ,‘10, 1886, Ed, 11. (lavnor, Contractor.
4037, May 31, 1880, Charles C. Ely, Contractor.

(John F. Guvnor was manager of the work and Ely did 
not ap|>ear about the construction at all.)
4517, March 2, 1801, John F. Guvnor, Contractor.
5254, March 20, 1803, Atlantic Contracting Company.

Fort Clinch, Florida.
4637, July 20, 1801, Win. 11. Walsh, Contractor.

(Wm. II. W’alsli was Greene and Gavnor’s foreman.)

Darien Harbour and Mouth of Altamahu River.
5127, December 20, 1802, Atlantic Contracting Company, 

Contractor.
5133, December 20, 1892, Atlantic Contracting Company. 
5253, March 1, 1803, Atlantic Contracting Company, Con­

tractor.
6040, April 20, 1805, W. T. Guvnor, Contractor.

Altamaba River (Upper).
2933, December 5, 1884, Ed. II. Guvnor, Contractor. 

Savannah River, Augusta.
2934, December 5, 1884, Ed. IT. Gaynor, Contractor.
3392, February 9, 1887, John F. Gaynor, Contractor.
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(W. II. Walsh was foreman of Greene ami Oaynor's brush 
camp during the performance of this contract, and the money 
to pay off the hands under this contract was carried bv Gal­
lagher, the bookkeeper of the Atlantic Contracting Co., to 
Augusta.)

So they hail many occasions to come into contact and a 
great intimacy appears to have sprung up between Gaynor 
and Greene, and Carter. Carter frequently before the year 
1801 borrowed money from Greene, and they were mutually 
interested in private enter]irises, as the following letters and 
extracts from letters will amply show.

On June 21st, 1 885, Captain Carter writes to W. II. 
Brawlcy, ( "luirleston :

“The enclosed letter was given to me by Captain Greene 
who will go to Washington, and he desires me to ask if you 
would lie so kind as to have the copy referred to in your letter 
made, and sent to me. Please let me know the expense in­
curred, and 1 will remit the amount- to you."

On November 2nd he writes to accused John F. Gaynor, 
concerning the purchase of Vine Lands in Georgia:

“ It is not yet cold enough to go to work on our project. 
I am looking up pine lands, and ' : up the conven­
tion.”

On June 24th, Issli, lie writes to the accused 11. D. Greene 
enclosing a cheque payable to Greene or order for $50.

On August 2nd, 1880, he sends accused Greene a cheque 
for $100 payable to his order, requesting him to credit it on 
his account, and on January 5th, 18S8, he sends a cheque 
to accused B. D. Greene for $200.50 being a balance of an 
indebtedness of $1,000.

On May 24th, 1888, he writes to accused Greene in 
relation to proposed joint enterprise in a gas company, in an 
air jack, for cotton, and marble quarries, and says:

“ There are only about five men in it and they are the 
best in Savannah. If it proves what we believe, with an 
investment of $10,000 the yield annually net ought to be 
$120,000, with larger yield by increase in plant. If it

3572
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amounts to anything of course 1 want you to go in with me, 
but say nothing to John as this is outside matter. 1 hear 
nothing further about the railroad.”

On June 11th, INKS, Carter writes to Greene as follows:
“I expect to go to some quarries on the line of the S. F. 

<V XV. in aient ten days, and they say they will put rock in 
at Savannah and Brunswick at whatever rates I say. Of 
course I have not seen the quarries yet, but if the rock is 
good it will be worth looking into and 1 want to know what 
you think good rock equal to New York stone would lie worth 
delivered as stated.”

“ I have not seen Olmstead as he is at Rome.”
On August 23rd, Carter again writes to accused

Greene :
“I saw Olmstead almut the marble and he says that he 

learns that a very badly shattered specimen was shipped to 
New X'ork. There is a good s|«'eimen now at Rome, l'lease 
see if the sample in New York is suitable. If not, 1 will 
have the other piece shipped.”

Another letter of Carter to accused Greene bears date 
September 1st, 1888, and contains the following:

“ I leave for Rome to-night to secure lease for lands and 
l>cgin work as required by lease. I rather think that only 
Olmstead, Hull and Lathrop will remain in, in which case 
they have already agreed to share equally with me. I have 
many things to tall von about il. I have also got my eye
on some coal Ian near Birmingham........... Can you meet
me in Washington t ”

On Septi nber 23rd, 1888, Carter writes ; accused 
Greene :

“ 1 have nothing to invest just now as my n >ncy is 
like to tab $1,250 or $2,500 worth of stis'k. 25 or 50 -hares.
Let me know if you wish to venture in it................ I hud
the block of marble i" " " to Evans and wrote him t send
it 11]) to Batterson, See A Eisele. 1 sincere!' h" the 
Chili scheme is not a paper on. onlv it looks i bright to 
last.”

14
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On October 25th, 188S, accused, 13. D. Greene, writes 
to darter as follows :
“ Dear Carter:

Yours at band, could not do dredging as cheap as you 
say and work only 4 months in two years .... The 
block of marble is at I!., S. & E.’s, and has l>cen for two 
weeks. Hr. See says be can do nothing with a block of such 
irregular quclity .... As John pies to Chili, Thurs­
day, Nov. 1st, we can’t very well handle the matter even if 
it were good, which 1 doubt. About six mo’s from now 
$6,000,000 harbor work is coming up in Chili, and we have 
assurance of our ability to get it. We are now looking for 
a first class man to go with John as an expert. The first 
thing we shall tackle will lie a tunnel 3,000 feet long, and 
we can have as many millions li.li. work proper as choose 
to take, probably we shall go for about $4,000,000 con­
tract .... We have the preference, and John goes 
down on the ship with the general manager of the syndi­
cate, so you see our show seems good. Now I want to do 
up Charleston, Savannah and Feniandina by July 1st next, 
so that we can go down by that time if not lief ore. This 
I think is the chance of our lives. Now, let that dredging 
so John and I can sell out our stock, and hurry tip the two 
works all you can so we can get going by New Year’s. This 
is important.

“This Cliili business is business, and I think within DO 
days we shall l>c into that tunnel. What do you think of 
this? Of course the scheme 1 outlined when T first wrote 
you about Cliili a month or more ap> will lie carried out, 
and a year hence will find us both struggling with the Span­
ish lingo .... Put that dredging through on the 
basis of working only a part of every other year, and no 
outside work, and you will see it is worth 18c. or 19c.”

On November 22nd, 1888, Carter writes a letter to ac­
cused, Greene, in which he says :

“ I told him that. I wished you, Gaynor, Minis and him­
self with mo in the .Tack, but only you, Gaynor, himself
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and myself in the cotton living business.................... What­
ever the Chili business comes to, this appears to be certain, 
and if Clay can only do his share there is no doubt of great 
financial success.” ,

On May 26th, 1889, Carter writes to accused, ( 1 reçue, 
saying :

“Shall you be here within a week ! If not, can vou 
manage to let me have #2,000 if [ should need it. I don’t 
want that we should la1 frozen out of a gcxsl tiling. I will 
write you again to-morrow night after I see Shepherd, and 
la-fore going to Florida. Guvnor is not here, and I have 
not seen him in some days.”

On .Tune 6th, 1889, Carter telegraphs to II. 1). Greene 
from Savannah to New York as follows :

“General Alexander desires me to ask yon to telegraph 
the “ Morning News ” at once the following affidavit over 
veur signature.

“ The affidavit of Mr. Curtis, so far as it alleges an attempt 
ujion my part to brilie him, and so far as it relates to state­
ments said to have been made bv me reflecting in any man­
ner whatever upon Lieutenant Carter, is falsi- in every par­
ticular. An affidavit to this effect, will follow in due time."

The same day Carter sent the following telegram to ac­
cused, II. 1). Greene:

“ The affidavit of Curtis to which my telegram refers is 
ns follows :

“ In February II. D. Greene renewed the above proposi­
tion of Guvnor stating that he would add to my salary 
$0(10,00 per month and would get Lieut. Carter to increase 
said salary. Tie said it was in his power to secure mv ap- 
pointment and that he had also the power to have Lieut. 
Carter remove any obnoxious inspector, instancing Inspector 
G. AY. Brown, who was removed at Femandina in 1886, 
and stating that Br- - n's sueces or was worth to him $60 
per day.” ,
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Ou the same day Uarter writes tv accused, Greene, vu 
the sauiu subject a letter in which he says :

“ Duu't tail tv insert in the affidavit each aud every state­
ment that 1 have made.”

On March UOtli, 1801, Captain Carter writes tv C. li. 
Ba.-»ett, Newark, in the following manner:

“ Will you please inform me as to the character aud 
amount of work proposed for Orange in regard to water 
supplies, sewerage and drainage. 1 should lie glad to know 
also when proposals for the work are to lie opened, if the 
work i- to be done by contract ( ”

When in Septemlier, I Mi7, the papers of Captain Carter 
were detained in his tile case, there was f " among them 
a stock certificate lsiok containing the certificates of stock 
issued, and later transfers of The Umpire Construction Com­
pany. This stock certificate I took shows 2,000 shares is­
sued, of which there was issued .lune, 18!(1, to li. 1). Greene, 
1,080 shares; to J. F. G ay nor, T> shares; E. IT. Gaynor, 5 
shares ; to .1 aines E. Chandler, ft shares ; to A. M. N ewton, 
5 shares. It a)»|>ears bv the evidence of Mr. 11. F. Westcott, 
father-in-law of Captain Carter, and who lived in Orange, 
that Carter was interested in this Empire Construction Com­
pany, with Gaynor and Greene, that the company got this 
Orange, New Jersey sewerage contract, and that Carter 
feared they would lose a lot of money on account of Greene 
not paying proper attention to the work. Mr. Westcott 
was then introduced to Greene by Carter.

On March 27th, 1801, Carter writes to E. V. Rossi ter, 
an official of the New York Central Railroad as follows:

“ Dear Sir:

When T presented your letter to Doctor Webb to-dav he 
told me that lie had virtually let the contract for the TTer- 
kimer Roland extension to Mr. Wlcstbrook, a partner of 
General Tlusted, that the greater part of it had actually been

5



let, tlint work had liven begun last Monday, and that lie prc- 
ferriil to let the rest of the contract to the game party to 
whom he had already let the greater part. I regret exceed­
ingly that I had no opportunity to submit a proposition for 
the work either as a whole or in part, ns I feel confident, that 
it would have inured to the company's lienetit as well tes to 
my own.”

I >n April titli ho writes the following to Doctor Webb, Pre­
sident Wagner Palace far Company:

Dear Sir:—

1 inferring to our conversation of the 27th ultimo, I lieg 
to state that if any extension of your Adirondack railroad 
to Tupper Lake or elsewhere is oomtemplated, I should Ik; 
glad to have an opportunity of submitting a proposition for 
the construction of the same. Mv associates and myself are 
in a jxjeition to Wgiti work at once, to lake a contract of any 
amount of work, and to carry the same forward to your en­
tire satisfaction.

In his deposition Mr. li. F. Westeott, page 1101 stati-d 
that accused Greene had done that work.

MANNER OF PROVING CONSPIRACY.

Now, how ie a conspiracy usually proven? Here is what 
is found on the subject in Arhbold’s Criminal Practice and 
Pleading, page 1841, edition -T. M. Pomeroys; note:

“ A conspiracy is proved either expressly or bv proof of 
facts from which the Jury may infer it. It is seldom proved 
expressly, nor can a case easily lie imagined in which that is 
likely to occur unless where one of the persons implicated in 
the conspiracy consents to lie examined as a witness for the 
prosecution. In nearly all cases therefore, the conspiracy is 
proved by circumstantial evidence, namely, by proof of facts 
from which the Jury may fairly imply it. It is usual to 
begin by showing that the defendants all knew each other, and 
that a certain degree of intimacy existed between them, so
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as to show that their conspiring together is not ’
If to t liis can lie added evidence of any consultations, or pri­
vate meetings In-tween them, there is then a strong fotimht 
tion for the evidence to Ik* subsequently given, namelv of 
the overt act of each of the defendants in furtherance of the 
common design”.

And in East:—
“ Conspiracy is generally a matter of inference from cer­

tain criminal acts of the parties accused done in pursuance 
of an apparent criminal purpose in common between them.” 
R. vs Brissac 4 East 171.

And in Starkie: “V])on indictment for conspiracy the 
evidence is either direct of a meeting and consultation for 
the illegal purposes charged, or more usually from the very 
nature of the case, circumstantial.” 2 Stark ie on Evidence 
282 (2nd edition).

And in re Murphy : “If on a charge of conspiring it ap­
pears that two person-, by their acts are pursuing tin* same 
object, and often by the same means the one performing part 
of an act and the other completing it for the attainment of 
the act, the Jury may draw the conclusion that there is a 
conspiracy.” Coleridge •!., It. v. Murphy, (\ «.V 1\ 297.

It seems to me that there is such an intimacy proven be­
tween Carter and the accused as to render a conspiracy 
between them, nut only possible hut probable. By becoming 
the associate of the accused in some collateral business whilst 
they wore under contracts with the Government for work to 
lie done under his (' arter’s) control und supervision, Carter 
was treading upon angemus ground, and if he was not ac­
tually serving two masters he was to a great extent imperil­
ling the independence and impartiality so essential for him 
in the important and responsible office he occupied. The way 
he acted towards Mr. Venable at the time of the letting out 
of the 1890 contracts by chilling him is indicative of his 
desire of dissuading bidders from tendering for the work, 
which act was against the evident interest of the Government, 
to whose advantage it was to have the greatest competition

468926
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in * lie lotting out of these contracts. The act of Carter in tin’s 
circumstance, when seen in the light of what |kis*v<1 later 
on, is very suspicious. The accuse» 1 succeeded in putting 
Venahle out. of the way, hut the sum s> ».f tin* op-ration 
was surely prepares I by ('artel*, ami t hi - fact makes it wrong 
for all the participants in this transaction.

Next, t.!ie exorbitant prices at which the contracts were 
let out, the introduction of the three* designs of mattress at 
the option of the engineer in charge, and to he tendered for 
at one price for the three ; the calling for the cheapest, design 
to the great detriment of his employers ; the fraudulent 
manner in which the work was executed by tin* aeeu-nl t»» 
the knowledge, and with the consent of Carter ; his toleration 
of the construction of the multiple mats ; his negligence to 
have inspectors in the brush camps, s.» that the material of 
t.ln-se multiple mats could he examined : the fact that In* had 
his father-in-law advance to (ireçue $50,000 whilst the work 
was carried on; his considerable ami almost sudden wealth ; 
his high living and annual expense* : his delivering over to 
Greene ami (iavnor of all his securities when lie thought 
himself in danger; the return <*f them to \\\*>tcoit by Greene, 
with the declaration that they were his ( Wvstcott’s ) pro­
perty, which they knew to Ik* false; the turning of them over 
by West cot t to Garter, who accepted them, with other minor 
facts such as the shortness of the delays in the advertisements 
of the letting of the contracts, and the fact that the accused 
could secure all tin* contracts adjudicated in the district, 
which might have been innocent in ordinary cases, are all 
in my opinion circumstances sufficient to justify one in 
believing that a corrupt agreement to defraud the United 
States had been in existence between Carter and the accused 
since at least there was any question of the letting out of the 
contracts of 1890, and was still in existence on the date 
mentioned in the information and complaint in thi- east*.

With similar evidence to support a charge of conspiracy 
alleged to have been committed in this country, the accused, 
I lielieve, would lx* committed for trial.
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Of course in flip present ease, I have not to commit upon 
the charge of conspiracy, because conspiracy per se is not 
an extraditable crime, but the conspiracy hod to be proven 
to establish the overt acts charged as specific crimes, and to 
constitute participation by conspiracy in fraud by an agent 
and I think the allegation of conspiracy is proven beyond 
doubt.

But the prosecution has not stopped at adducing the evi­
dence which 1 have almve referred to. In order to establish 
more forcibly the criminal intent of Carter, and of the ac­
cused, they have meant to prove other fr ' " acts by 
them, in similar circumstances to those just enquired into, 
to show the criminality in the overt nets of the conspiracy 
presently charged as specific crimes. As justifying this 
course they have cited the case of The Queen vs Sternaman, 
in which it was held that:

1st—Evidence is admissible on a charge of murder by 
poisoning, to show the administration of the same kind of 
poison by the prisoner to another person, as proving intent;

2nd.—Evidence of similar symptoms of arsenical poison­
ing g the death of prisoner’s former husband follow­
ing administration to him of food prepared by the prisoner, 
is evidence to show intent as regards the charge of arsenical 
poisoning of a second husband on evidence of arsenical pois­
oning of the latter, and of similar preparation of food by the 
prisoner, and her attendance on her husband during his ill­
ness. (1 Canadian Criminal Cases, page 1), and the author­
ities there cited, and particularly the leading ease of Makiu 
vs The Attorney General of New South Wales, 1894, Law 
Reports, 1894, page 57, in which the following decision was 
given :

“Evidence tending to show that the accused had been 
guilty of criminal acts other than those covered by the indict­
ment is not admissible unless upon the issue whether the acts 
charged against the accused were designed or accidental, or 
unless to rebut a defence otherwise open to him. Where 
prisoners had been convicted of the wilful murder of an

8891

4870



45

ÎT.fiUit child, which the evidence showed they luid received 
front its mother on certain representations as to their willing­
ness to adopt it, and upon a sum inadequate for it* support 
for more than a very limited period, and whose hodv the evi­
dence showed had been found buried in the garden of a house 
occupied by them.

Held t That evidence that several other infants had lieen 
received by the prisoners from their mothers, on like repre­
sentations, and on like terms, and that bodies of infants had 
lieen found buried in a similar manner in the gardens of 
several houses occupied by the prisoners, was relevant to the 
issue which had been tried bv the jury.”

See also Connolly and McCreevy, 25 Ontario Reports, 
ltl 8-1 CO.

In re Hoke, 14 Revue Legale, 705, where it was held by 
Dugas, J.S.P.

“ The guilty intent must have lieen precedent to and have 
accompanied the fabrication of such forged instruments, and 
the repetition of acts of the same kind, will be admitted in 
evidence as proof of such guilty intent.”

The same has lieen decided in the V. S. See Wood vs 
U.S., 41, ILS. 10 Peters, page 342.

Taylor vs V.S., 44 V.S., 3 Howard 197.
Moore vs V.S., 150 V.S., 57, Book 37 Law Edition 996.
U.S. vs Snyder, 14 F. R. 554.
Queen vs Mulcahey, Law Rep., 3 ILL. 300, 317.
With these authorities in support, I think the evidence of 

ether overt acts to show guilty intent must be admitted, and 
this other evidence may lie briefly reviewed as follows :

We have seen before that out of 28 contracts for work let 
out in the district from 1884 to 1897, only one went to a 
gentleman not connected with the accused, and this man is 
Mr. A. »T. Twiggs, a civil engineer and contractor of Augusta, 
Georgia. We have seen also the great changes in the price 
of mattresses since Carter’s tenure of office the price increas­
ing from 94 cents per cubic yard in Î885, and $1.40 in 1890 
to $4.40 in 1890, for less costly and less valuable work to
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the 1'nited Stales ; also the new feature of the introduction 
in 1891 of three designs of mattress, to lie bill for at one 
price, and to he selected by the engineer in charge which 
opened the door to the commission of the frauds complained
of. ne

The narration now of the experience of Mr. Twiggs and l'r
of Mr. Agnew, and the coming in contact of Mr. Charles P.
Goodyear, of Brunswick, Georgia, with Carter and the ac- :lt-r
eased, and the manner in which the contracts of 22ml Octo­
ber, 1892, culled the big contracts, were let out, and an ex- 'I''
amination of the progressive growth of Carter’s wealth are by
of a nature to throw more light on the designs of the accused vn
and of Carter, and consequently upon the whole case. At

A. .7. Twiggs states that in 1891 he went to Savannah with 
the object of bidding for the contract for the work to be done 
on the River Savannah at Augusta, which contract was let 
out to accused Guvnor on September 9th, 1891, and that he * v
met accused Gaynor who offered him $000 and to take from 
him all the stone (Twiggs owned a quarry) if he would not 
bid for this work, which proposal Twiggs accepted. Then 
accused Gaynor had not tiled his bid. lie got the specifics- 11111
tiens in the presence of Twiggs, and commenced preparing 
his tender. Noticing the high price inscribed by accused am
Gaynor, Twiggs asked him if he did not fear some other s|ri
bidder might file some lower bid. Gaynor answered “ No ,*11'
other person intends to bid." Twiggs then mentioned that lie 
had heard that one Mr. Denning, of Augusta, intended to 
file a bid. To that accused Gaynor replied “ I will find 
out, and writing a letter he gave it to a messenger, who im- "1*
mediately brought an answer, and Gaynor having rend it 
said “ No, there is no other bid ; we are all right.” Accused 
Gaynor got the contract at the very high price he had men- lri"
tioned. Iiar

The same Mr. Twiggs says that in 189.1 some new work 
to lie made near Augusta was advertised to be let out by con­
tract. He went to Savannah to bid for that work. Edward 
Gaynor went to him and offered him with insistance, $1,000
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for not bidding, which offer was refused. Twiggs tender 
being the lowest, the contract was let to him, number 5.350, 
July 5th, 1893. After the bids were opened he was followed 
by Edward Gaynor to his hotel where Edward Gavnor re­
newed his offer, and asked Twiggs to abandon his contract, 
promising at the same time to protect him for his inexecu­
tion of the same, for Twiggs had guarantors. The offer was 
again refused.

Twiggs was familiar with the nature of the work to lie 
dene under his contract, for he had studied the work done 
by John F. Gaynor, below Augusta. He had also frequently 
visited the work done by XV. 11. Walsh in 1892, above 
Augusta, and \\\ II. Walsh having completed his work, 
Twiggs engaged his foreman and his men. The sjieciticu- 
tions in this contract of Twiggs were the same as in the ex­
ecuted contracts of John F. Gaynor and W. II. Walsh. 
Twiggs meant to proceed in the same way in the execution 
of his contract, and started using similar material. lie had 
a great number of fascines prepared, precisely like those in 
the Gaynor and Walsh contracts, and with the same material, 
and by the same hands. But he was not permitted by Carter 
to put in any of these fascines. Carter examined ihem all, 
and said that none of them would do. lie himself cut the 
string of one, trimmed off all the brush, leaving nothing but 
the naked poles, and had a fascine built in his presence made 
of poles without any brush, and declared he wanted all the 
fascines to l>e made that way, and the poles to be the whole 
length of the fascine. Twiggs’ fascines were to l>e bound 
with wire, while the Gaynor fascines under similar specifica­
tions were tied with lath yarn. The lath yarn that Twiggs 
had procured and which Carter condemned had lieen bought 
from the very person who furnished it to Gaynor, and was 
part of an identical lot he had ordered for Gaynor, and 
which had been left over. The fascines put in the Gaynor 
contract were brush cut as near the work as they could get 
it, right on the river bank, bundled up with a rope choker, 
and the bundle was made from loose brush, limbs, leaves, and
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everything together. Twiggs had to got liis fascines from 
six to twenty-five miles clown the river, and haul them up by 
steamboat All the fascines made hail to I* re-made, and 
nothing but the hare poles used, and the brush was thrown 
away. Twiggs then went to Savannah where- similar work 
was Iw-ing carried on under the big contract of October 22nd, 
1892, by the accused, to ascertain the manner in which the 
fascines were made. He got a row-boat and went where the 
fascines were used, and the lighter came down the rivet- 
loaded with brush and in that were some fascines made of 
weeds and yellow flowers in them. They were brush, pine 
duck and vines. The fascines were not fastened there as he 
was himself required to do. lie had to fasten down his 
with stakes six feet long and three inches in diameter, whilst 
in Savannah the accused were only required to fasten them 
down with pins 18 inches long, and l1/-» inches in diameter, 
and it must lie remembered that this was under the same 
specifications.

The Inspeetor required Twiggs to drive down his pins six 
feet in the ground, notwithstanding the difficulty id' driving 
them bv hand, the damage- to the pins, and the length of time 
required, and Carter suggested to him to get a pile driver.

Twiggs says that hardships were put on him by Inspector 
Connut Ululer the elireet instructions of Carter, and condi­
tions of construction were exacted from him which were not 
in the specifications, nor in the contract. He was required 
to use a chain choker to compress his fascines—the Gayuors 
were allowed to use a rope choker. Twiggs declares that on 
account of all sorts of difficulties put in bis way by Carter, 
he was unable to complete his work in the time stipulated in 
his contract, and that Carter hail it completed at his 
(Twiggs’) expense, at exorbitant and unjust prices, paying 
as much as $1.60 per cubic yard for stone that he himself 
could have supplied from his own quarry at 75 cents.

Twiggs lost four thousand dollars on his small contract.
Thomas J. Agnew says that in September 1894 he went 

to the office of Captain Carter, that he met the head clerk
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of Carter, who informed him that ho had to apply to Carter 
!<•!-<mallv for specifications. Agnew was representing E. R. 
Hunting A: Co. who were acting jointly with lï. Ci. Ross A- 
C„ of Jacksonville, Florida. lie asked his family phy­
sician, Doctor Rrandt, to apply for hint for specifications. 
Captain Carter did not send any hut wrote to Dr. Rrandt that 
the sjtecifications could Ik* seen at his oflice. Agnew writes 
again on September -1st to Carter complaining of not having 
yet received the copies of specifications applied for, and ask­
ing Carter to give instructions to his clerk to send him some. 
Again Carter answers that the specifications can lx1 seen at 
his office. Then Agnew gets them from the offiee. The bids 
are prepared by Ross A: Co. for whom Agnew is acting. On 
September 29th, 1894. the day of the opening of the bids, 
Agnew goes to the oflice of Carter, and there lie meets 
Edward II. Gaynor, and John F. Gaynor, the accused, who 
asked him if he intended to hid. Having said yes, they 
offered him $.100 if he would refrain from bidding, lint the. 
offer was refused. Then the two Qavnors went into the 
office of Carter, where the hills were to be opened, and took 
an envelo|K- out of two which were on Carter's desk and 
Edward Gaynor replaced it by another. This happened ten 
minutes before noon, which was the time set for opening of 
the bids. The bids being opened it was found that then; 
were none from the Gaynors, nor from The Atlantic Con­
tracting Company, hut the lowest bidder was Anson M. 
Bangs, who got the contract at the price of $2.28 per cubic 
yard of mattress. Rut it afterwards turned out that Bang* 
was in reality Gaynor and Greene.

Charles 1*. Goodyear, a Barrister, of Brunswick, Georgia, 
states in his deposition that he attempted in 1891 to doe|ien 
the channel of Brunswick llarlxmr by placing dynamite on 
the lsittom and under the Isittoni of the channel, and de­
pending on the strong currents to wash out the sands loos­
ened by the dynamite. Goodyear continued to use his dyna­
mite process in 1802 under an Act of Congress granting 

4
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him compensation according to the depth obtained, the depth 
to be verified by Carter. In November, 1892, Goodyear 
went to Savannah, with his partner, Mr. W. K. Kay, to see 
( tirter, who had made an inspection of his work. Carter 
told him tliat lie had not reached the depth reipiired by the 
Act, namely 22 or 211 feet, and asked him to have an inter- that
view with 1dm alone. Carter declared to Goodyear that 11 Wt
as an engineer he had been desirons of deepening the outer tract
bar of Brunswi<‘k, Georgia, by the jetty system under a f"r • 
recommendation he had made for dee]telling that, bar for 1
a compensation of $2,718,000, that is, an estimate for that £
amount. “ lie stated that he recognized the faet that so * ‘""b 
long as I continued my work u|sin the bar by the melbod lir"lM
I was pursuing, the use of dynamite, the jieople of Bruns- 1,1
wiek would not sitpjsirt an effort to obtain the contract 1)0
for jetties from the Government : that he recognized the l1
fact that I had. as he expressed it, a good deal of influence "'it h 
in Washington, that he believed legislation would lie pro- 
cured for the deepening of the outer bar of Brunswick upon 
the basis of the recommendation of $2.718,0(1(1 by the eon- jettin
stmetion of jetties ; that it would lie necessary if such an Go
arrangement was carried through that he should remain at with
Savannah ; that it would reipiire to retain him there the nor r
influence not only of the people of Savannah, but, perhaps, to get
the influence of the people of Brunswick. He said that was n
he had in his mind a firm of honest contractors who would 11‘<‘ h
get the contract for the work if the Act of Congress could $-• ‘ 1
lie ]Kissed njwpreprinting the money for the jetty system. would
lie said that if I would abandon my dynamite method, Goodi 
abandon the work on the bar, and procure the influence of hot d< 
the people of Brunswick, which he said he recognized was 111
behind me, and would be governed by my action, and go to *'.v Jo 
Washington, and do what T could to procure the passing of accept 
this legislation, that he would procure mv reimbursement Hie
for all the money I had spent to that time on the outer bar known
of Brunswick, that he would procure all my expenses paid millim
to Washington, and that he would procure payment of one The

at the



61

third of all the profita ou the jetty enterprise in the event 
the Act was passed.”

Goodyear continues :
“lie, Carter, then told me who the contractors were, 

that they were Greene and Gayimr, and that 1 slid that 
it would lie well to luive some confirmation from the con­
tractor- in a proposition of that sort, u|hhi which lie sent 
for John Guvnor, and John Gay nor came into the room 
and participated in the balance of the interview, confirming 
the statements that Carter had made with one exception. 
Carter hud created the impression in my mind tlmt it was 
promised to reimburse me at once for my outlays on the bar 
lit Brunswick, then an inconsiderable amount, about #10,000, 
to pay my expenses to Washington, and pay me one third 
the profits. He confirmed the proposition made by Carter 
with the exception of the proposition in relation to the 
# 10,0(10, which was only to lie paid me in the event the 
legislation was procured for deepening the outer bar by 
jetties.”

G....lycar said to G ay nor: “ I have had some discussion
with Carter alsmt jetties getting water on this bar." Guv­
nor replied, “ What do yon cure alsmt water ? The thing 
to get is money.” Goodyear says that one-third of $760,000 
was mentioned as being the probable third of the profits, on 
the bads of Carter's suggestion for the appropriation of 
$-,71S,000, and in the conversation Carter stated that there 
would be a division of the profits by three, one part for 
Goodyear, and one part would be set aside for a purpose 
not declared.

In December, 1*02, Goodyear was visited at, Brunswick 
bv John Guvnor and Edward flay nor, and was urged to 
accept the proposition, but he declined. ,

The Savannah contract of October 22nd. 1*02, throughout 
known as the big contract of 1*02, was a three and a quarter 
million dollar contract.

The specifications were for three designs of mattress, 
at the selection of the engineer in charge, and to be bid
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upon at one price, which was $3.80 per cubic yard. Under 
this contract Garter called for the third design, that is to 
say, the one most advantageous to the contractors by its 
construction, and by the material which composed it, and 
tl most detrimental to the United States. It is under 
this contract that the construction of the multiple mats was 
begun, and that the sinking separately of each mattress 
was discontinued, a system greatly to the benefit of the con­
tractors and greatly injurious to the United States.

What has been said above concerning the execution of 
the work under the 1890 contracts applies to this 1892 con­
tract, and 1 refer to the résumé already made of the evidence 
of Mr. Cooper and Captain Gillette.

In the Cumberland Sound contract of the 16th September, 
1892, let to Edward IL G ay nor, the s[>ecifications were the 
game in regard to the three designs of mattress at the option 
of the engineer in charge, and to be bid at one price, which 
was $4.20 per cubic yard. The third design was adopted 
also by Carter in this contract.

Captain Gillette was of the opinion that there was ten 
per cent, more brush material in the second design than in 
the third, and that the a|*cifications for the second design 
called for more particularity of construction, so that it 
would, for the reasons stated, l>c at least twenty-five per cent, 
more costly. The first design was also very much more 
costly than the third. It had, in addition, a raft of 12 inch 
logs, which Captain Gillette says would cost the contractor 
about 40 cents per square yard. Assistant Engineer Cooper 
corroborates Captain Gillette on this matter.

The evidence of Captain Gillette and of Mr. Cooper in 
reference to the 1896 contracts and the fraudulent construc­
tion of the mattresses apply exactly to the 1892 contracts, 
and it is not necessary to repeat them.

It was part of Captain Carter’s duty, as disbursing officer, 
to approve all legitimate claims arising out of the execution 
of the different contracts let out to the accused, and pay 
these claims. To effect the payment of claims he would
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demand the necessary money from the Treasurer of the 
United Statist, who would put it to his credit with the As­
sistant Treasurer of the United States at New York. These 
payments would lie made at the beginning of each month 
for work of a proceeding month, by cheques payable in two 
hatches, one hatch of these was de|s,sited in heal hanks 
at Savannah, and the proceeds went for the payment of ex 
penses in carrying on the work, and for wages and salaries, 
and the other batch was sent to New York and deposited 
there to the credit of one of the contractors, and the pro­
ceeds divided as profits lietween the partners. Mr. E. I. 
Johnson, the exjiert accountant and hank examiner, has 
separated the cheques sup|msed to have gone for the carry­
ing on of the work at Savannah, and the cheques supposed 
to have represented the profits of the enterprises. lie has 
prepared a table, Exhibit •'ll!), showing :ij supposed monthly 
divisions of profits, on the assumption that they were to he 
divided by thirds, and the result of his work is highly illus­
trative and instructive. The thirty two different parts of 
this Exhibit .'lilt presume to show the reception of the cheques 
in New York hv one of the contractors, the payment by him 
of the supposed share due to the other contractor, the pay­
ment of a similar share to a third party unknown, the keep­
ing for himself the balance, and comsqionding reel 
into his exchispier by Carter of a sum equivalent to a third 
of the assumed profits and the investments made by Carter 
on or about the dates of the payments bv him of the con­
tractors claims, and the division by the contractors of the 
funds received .

It was noticed by Mr. Johnson that on many occasions 
the unknown appeared to receive sometimes $75, and some 
times $ 150 more th n the two accused, and it was found that 
when this occurred, Carter was in Now York at the time 
of the division. When $150 wore added to the supposed 
third of the unknown, this fact was explained by the presence 
of Carter in New York after two successive divisions. This 
peculiarity’ is to lie noticed because the payment of $75 was

4
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always omitted when Carter was not in New York at the 
time of the division. Some of the divisions of the cheques 
received in New York by the accused as representing the 
supposed profits show that these cheques were exactly divided 
into three, and that (Jarter received the same day exactly 
a sum correspniding to one-thinl. By division !l, for ex­
ample, it is shown that a deposit was made to the credit of 
William T. Gaynor, in the American Exchange National 
Bank, of a cheque for $39,076, 1 icing the cheque of Carter 
of August 3rd, 1893. On August 7th, Carter was in New 
York. $39,075 less the $75, divided into three, makes 
three parts of $13,000 each. On the same day, 7th August, 
1893, William T. Gaynor withdrew from the hank exactly 
$13,075 by cheque. Two days after this withdrawal of 
$13,075 there is a deposit with Reed &■ Flagg, Brokers, in 
currency, of $13,000 and a cheque for $390, in all $13,390. 
This deposit was invested by Reetl and Flagg in ten Dela­
ware and Hudson bonds at a cost price of $12,825, and the 
difference between $13,390 and this latter sum of $12,825 
was returned by Reid and Flagg by cheque for $565, dated 
August 10th, 1893, in favor of 11. F. Westcott, or O. M. 
Carter.

I may state here that Carter had a power of attorney from 
his father in-law, Mr. Westcott, who was frequently travel­
ling abroad, and that investments were often made by Carter 
in the name of Mr. Westcott, but Mr. Westcott has testified 
that those investments were made by Carter with his own 
money and for his own benefit, and that the securities bought 
were his (Carter’s) absolute property.

Anyhow, this cheque of Reed and Flagg for $565 was 
deposited on the 11th August, by Carter, to his own credit. 
It is in evidence that on September 1st, 1893; March 2nd, 
October 8th, 1896, and March 6th, 1897, Carter collected 
the nterest on these same Delaware and Hudson bonds. 
Besides that, these identical ten Delaware and Hudson bonds 
are enumerated in Carter’s final receipt of securities to West- 
eott on October 29th, 1897, showing conclusively that they 
were his property.
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The .«(vend division of January :ird, lsP3, Kxhibit .310, 
is the first su|iqKxsfil division under the Idg contracts of 1*02. 
The amount to he divided into three ports is nunle to appear 
to have lieen $38,700.12, whivh bv thirds makes $12,000. 
It is proven that on January 3rd, 180.3, Carter deposited 
to liis credit with the Union Trust Company, and with Van 
de Venter, broker, $12,000.

Division 7 of June 5th, 1803, shows the amount supposed 
to he divided in three was $37,500, of which one-third is 
$12,500, am! the evidence makes out that on the next day, 
June 0th, 1S03, there is deposited with Van de Venter, 
again in the name of li. F. Westcott, an amount of $12,500 
in currency, invested in ten Milwaukee, Like Shore and 
Western bonds, on which Carter is shown to have collected 
the coupons, and which bonds are included in Carter's final 
recopt to Westcott of October 20th. 1807, and Kellogg and 
Rose, the attorneys for Carter, received the cheque for the 
coupons on tins*1 identical hinds Novemlier 14th, 1000, so 
there can be no doubt as to Carter’s ownership of these bonds.

Now as another illustration let us take division 27, of 
June 7th 1805. The amounts supposed to lie available for 
division in the hands of ancused Gavnor was $50,231.43, of 
which one third is $18,743.81. On June 7th Gavnor issues 
his cheques in favour of Greene for $18,743.S1 and in 
favour of an unkown party for $18,818.81 which is $18,- 
743.81, and $75. Carter was in New York that day, and on 
tho samp date there was deposited to the account of R. I ■ 
Westcott, with Iieed and Flagg, Brokers, currency $0,500 
which was invested in securities on which Carter drew the 
interest ,and which are included in Carter’s final receipt of 
October 29th 1897, to Westcott. The difference between 
Carter’s supjiosed share ($18,818.81) and the amount 
invested ($0,500) may lx1 accounted for by an investment 
following the presumed subsequent division of tho next 
month, number 28, for a larger amount than the one supposed 
to have been then received.
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Let us now examine the supposed division of July 11th 
1803, number 8. The amount to be divided then was 
$108,000, one third of which is $30,000 and there was issued 
on that day by accused Greene a cheque in favour of an 
unknown party for $36,075. Carter was in New York that 
day, and on this same 11th July there is dc]K>sitod in the 
name of Westcott, with Reed and Flagg, currency $34,500. 
The securities bought with this money are traced into 
Carter’s receipt to Westcott of October 29th 1807, and Carter 
is shown to have collected the interest on tlnse same secu­
rities.

The last supposed division, that is, that of July 6th 1807, 
number 32, of the cheques mentioned in this complaint, 
aggregating $575,740.00 (to wit $345,000 for Cumberland 
Sound and $230,740.00 for Savannah llarltour, for the work 
suppose I to have been done from December 1896 to July 
1807) no monthly payments having been made, because no 
appropriation had been made by Congress for this work, does 
not show any cheques issued that day in favour of the 
unknown,'or any investment by Carter at this corres]x>nding 
date. The amount available for division according to the 
theory of Johnson, deduction being made of the advances for 
carrying on the work which had to be returned, was $380,- 
075, of which sum a third is $126,691.67. The two cheques 
were deposited by Greene to his account, anil lie paid over 
his third to Gaynor but apparently kept two thirds for him­
self, which was unusual. Carter’s interest in this division, if 
he was entitled to a share, would have amounted with his 
advance of $50,000 to $176,766.67. On July 8th Greene 
buys 150 United States five per cent, bonds at a cost of 
$172,500 a portion of which 1 Kinds was sold on August 6th 
for $22,700 and immediately a cheque was sent by Greene 
to Wiestc it for $21,000 which was returned to him for ac­
count of Carter on monies advanced by Westcott to Greene 
at Carter’s request. Greene was then paying the indebted­
ness of Carter.

Amongst the other divisions as shown by Mr. Johnson in 
his table, there are many which show an exact division into
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thirds, and a receipt by Carter of a sum correspondu^ to 
one third at the exact date of the division, and its investment 
on his behalf.

From the review of this latter part of the evidence it is 
manifest that Carter and the accused had guilty intents and 
motives ; that they were really in partnership for the execu­
tion of Government work in the district of Savannah; that 
their common design was to secure hv fraudulent devices all 
the contracts let out in the district, at exorbitant prices, 
which contracts were fraudulently executed by accused with 
the knowledge, permission and help of Carter, whose pay­
ment for his betrayal of the duties of his otliee was a share 
in the profits, which he received as is fully established bv 
the evidence of Mr. Johnson, who proved the divisions of 
monthly profits, aggregating for Carter to about $722,.r>28.02, 
ami by Mr. Westcott who proved the surprising ownership 
bv Carter of securities and property worth $570,801.8ii.

Besides, the fact of a conspiracy having existed between 
accused and Carter, is only mildly denied, the defence taking 
the position that no crime other, than conspiracy to defraud 
is shown by the evidence, arguing that the prosecution has in 
the past so interpreted the evidence itself, and that it was 
not reasonable at present to construe the facts proven as 
constituting other crimes than conspiracy. The defence has 
even tried to have one of their witnesses (Mr. Hose) who 
had been counsel for the accused and for Carter, in the United 
States, so declare by such questions as the following;

Q.—Now you are familiar with all the facts of this ease?
A.—Tolerably, from an acquaintance with them for eight 

years.
Q.—Under the laws of the United States, if the accused 

can lie charged with any crime, wliat crime would it bo ?
This question was objected to on the ground that it was 

not the province of the witness to make deduction from the 
facts, and the objection was maintained. In arguing it, Mr. 
Taschereau said : Mr. Taschereau K. C : “1 have a right to 
prove tinder the Treaty that the facts charged here do not 
constitute an extradition crime, but constitute something else
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not tin extradition prime.........I tint showing by tt limn who
knows what these offences in the United States constitute. 
Some facts have liven proven. The I’nile I States have lieeu 
at this ease quite a number of years. When Guvnor and 
Greene were in the States it was always considered ns a con­
spiracy to defraud, and presenting false claims, and indict­
ments were brought against them by the Grand Jury for 
those offences. It is admittisl by everyone that these crimes 
do not come within the Treaty. Xow, to bring them within 
the Treaty what do they do? They take the same facts and 
the same evidence, and call it something else.”

Mr. Mae Master K. <’: “The Privy Council say you 
can do that.”

Mr. Taschereau Iv. <\ : “The Privy Council never said 
any thing of the kind. They said, having brought that charge, 
that does not close the door to any other charge, hut you bring 
the same evidence on these charges which you found in the 
States, and now to bring them within the Treaty you call it 
something else, Xow. I have the right to bring on a I'nited 
States lawyer to show that these facts in the United States 
contittute the crime of conspiracy to defraud and presenting 
false clliims, ami that is not within the Treaty. To use 
the tenus of the Act, this is not an extradition crime.”

On page 28, the following question is put to Mr. Rose:
“ ().—Will you state Mr. Rose, what crime, if any, is 

shown by the evidence for the prosecution produced in this 
case, and taken before Commissioner Shields ?

On page .10 this question :
Q.—Will you state what offence is disclosed by the evidence 

of the prosecution taken before Commissioner Shields, and 
imported into this case, under the federal laws of the United
States I ”...............

Mr. Taschereau K. C. : “Supposing there would be a pro­
vision in the United States statutes to the effect that all these 
offences would only amount to conspiracy to defraud, and 
nothing else, surely we have a right to point that out to your 
honour.”
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So, from tho evidence, and these statements, there can ho 
no doubt whatever, that the allegation of conspiracy is over­
whelmingly proven. Besides it is to he noted that the facts 
proven by the prosecution are not controverted and that tho 
accused arc fugitives front justice which in itself is a sus­
picious circumstance.

Now let us see what effect this evidence has as to the crime 
specifically charged against the accused.

Wjo have seen that the object of the conspiracy was tho 
fraudulent obtaining at exorbitant prices, of contracts for 
work to lie done in the district of Savannah, with a view to 
fraudulently executing these contract- by no furnishing 
the material and labour contracted for, and by means of I rau- 
dulent and false claims presented to and approved by Cap­
tain Carter, unduly obtaining the money- of the 1 nited 
States.

Carter was arrested, and charged in the 1 nited States, 
with having conspired with the accused and other persons, 
to defraud the 1 "nited States in the manner and form alleged 
in the information in this ease, under Section Ô t:is, and with 
having “caused to lie made certain false and fraudulent 
claims against the I nited States, and in favor of The Atlan­
tic Contracting Company, a corporation, knowing the -a me 
to lie false and fraudulent, to wit, the claims for the pay­
ment of $230,740.00 and for $34.'»,000 in July, 1*07, which 
which said false and fraudulent claims the said Captain 
Carter caused to Is- made by knowingly permitting the said 
Atlantic Contracting Company, which had previously entered 
into contracts dated October 8th, 1800, to furnish the I nited 
States certain mattresses, stone and other material of speei- 
fied kinds and qualities for constructing works in said river 
and linrlor district, to furnish and put into said works, mat­
tresses, stone and other material different from, inferior to, 
cheaper, and of less value to the Vnitcd States, than tlns-e 
contracted for, and bv receiving and accepting, and paying 
for the same as of the kinds and qualities contracted for, 
and bv falsely certifying to the correctness of said vouchers, 
well knowing that the mattresses, stone and other material
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charged for in suiil vouchers, as having lieen furnished, had 
not in fact la-en furnished, each of I lie said claims having 
hccn made in or a 1Mlilt the month named in the above de­
scription of the voucher relating to it.

This was in contravention of Sections 5438 and 5440 
ot the Revised Statutes of the United States, which are as 
follows :

5438 : “ Kverv ]K-reon who makes, or causes to lie made,
or presents or causes to he presented, for payment or ap­
proval, to or by any person or officer in the civil, military, 
or naval service of the United States any claim upon or 
against the Government of the United States, or any depart­
ment or officer thereof knowing such claims to lie false, 
fictitious or fraudulent, or who for the pur)wise of obtaining 
or aiding to obtain the payment or approval of such claim, 
makes, uses, or causes to lie made or used, any false hill, 
receipt, voucher, roll, account claim, certificate, affidavit, or 
deposition, knowing the same to contain any fraudulent or 
fictitious statement or entry, or who enters into any agree­
ment, combination, or conspiracy to defraud the Government 
of the United States, or any department or officer thereof, 
by obtaining or aiding to obtain the payment or allowance 
of any false or fraudulent claim, or who, having charge, 
possession, custody or control of any money or other public 
property, used or to bo used in the military or naval service, 
who with intent to defraud the I'nited States, or wilfully 
to conceal such money or i ther property, delivers or causes 
to he delivered to any other person having authority to 
receive the same, any amount of such money or property 
less than that, for which he received a certificate or took a 
receipt, and every person authorized to make or deliver 
any certificate, voucher, receipt, or other paper certifying the 
receipt of arms, ammunition, provisions, clothing, or other 
property so used or to be used, who makes or delivers the same 
to any other person without a full knowledge of the truth 
of the facts stated therein, and with intent to defraud the 
United States, and every person who knowingly purchases,
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or receives in pledge for any obligation or indebtedness 
from any soldier, officer, sailor, or other jierson called into 
or employed in the military or naval service, any arms, 
equipments, ammunition, clothes, military stores, or other 
publie property, such soldier, sailor, officer, or other person 
not having the lawful right to pledge or sell the same, every 
person so offending in any of the matters set forth in this 
section shall be imprisoned at hard labor for not less than 
one nor more than five years, or fined not less than one 
thousand nor more than five thousand dollars."’

Section 5440 is as follows: “ If two or more persons con­
spire either to commit any offence against the United 
States, or to defraud the United States in any manner or 
for any purpose, and one or more of such parties do any act 
to effect the object of the conspiracy, all the parties to such 
conspiracy shall Ik1 liable to a ]>cnnlty of not loss than one 
thousand dollars and not more than ten thousand dollars and 
to imprisonment not more than two years.”

Carter was also charged with embezzling the aforesaid 
two sums of $230,740.00 and $345,000 under section 5488 
of the Revised Statutes of the United States, which is as 
follows :

5488: “ Evert7 disbursing officer of the United States who 
deposits any public money intrusted to him in any place, 
or in any manner, except as authorized by law, or converts 
to his own use in any way whatever or loans with or without 
interest, or for any purpose not prescribed bv law, with­
draws from the Treasurer or any Assistant Treasurer, 
or any authorized depositary, or for any purpose not 
prescribed by law transfers or applies any portion of 
the public money entrusted to him, is, in every such 
act, deemed guilty of an embezzlement of the moneys 
so deposited, converted, loaned, withdrawn, transferred 
or applied, and shall lx7 punished by imprisonment with 
hard labor for a term not less than one year, nor more 
than ten years, or by a fine of not more than the amount 
embezzled, or less than one thousand dollars, or by both 
such fine and imprisonment."
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Carter was found guilty or these three charges as laid.
The Supreme Court of the United States, before which 

the case was carried, on a writ of habeas corpus, declared 
that the conviction of conspiracy and of causing to In- pre­
sented false and fraudulent claims, was conviction of fraud. 
(Carter vs. McOlaughry, Supreme Court of United States, 
1001.) And 1 have no doubt that under our law if a public 
officer occupying under the (lovemment of Canada, an 
office corresponding to that held bv Carter under the 
(lovemment of the United States, would /conspire with 
contractors for public works to defraud the Government of 
Canada in the manner that Carter did, and would have pre­
sented to him for approval and payment false and fraudulent 
claims, and would approve and pay the same, he would bo 
guilty of fraud and breach of trust, and liable to lie prose­
cuted under section 135 of our Criminal Code, and committed 
for trial upon such evidence as is adduced before me here.

It is, liesides, determined by our law that all those who 
would have participated in his offence would lie liable to lie 
prosecuted as principals (the distinction between principals 
and accessories having ltoen abolished) and this by virtue 
of section <il of the Criminal Code of 1802. That geetion 
is in the following terms:

01.—Every one is a party to and guilty of an offence who
(«) Actually commits it; or
(}>) Goes or omits an act for the purpose of aiding any 

person to commit the offence; or
(c) Aliets any person in commission of the offence; or
(d) Counsels or procures any person to commit the 

offence.
2.—Tf several persons form a common intention to prose­

cute any unlawful purpose, and to assist each other therein,, 
each of them is a party to every offence committed by any 
one of them in the prosecution of such common purpose, 
the commission of which offence was, or ought to have 
been known to be a probable consequence of the prosecution 
of such common purpose. This is the application of the 
legal maxim Qui for it per (ilium faeit per re.
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In fuel, the two prisoners are accused before me with 
having participated in the fraud committed by Carter, by 
officer and agent of the Vnited States, fraudulent claims 
jointly causing to lie made and presented to said Carter, an 
officer and agi nt of the United States, fraudulent claims 
against the Government of the United States for his approval 
and payment to the amount of 749.90, knowing the 
same to lie fraudulent and false.

Have the accused participated in the specific offences of 
fraud committed hv Carter in the manner provided hv See- 
tion 01 ? To participate is the act or state of sharing in 
common with others (Webster’s Dictionary).

Participate :—To take equal shares and proportions—to 
share or divide (Bouvier’s Law Dictionary).

In law, by the fact of conspiring, the acts of one to effect 
and obtain the common design become the acts of all, for 
which all are liable. Tbe fraud committed by Carter by 
transferring liis loyal services from the Government of the 
United States, to his co-conspirators, and approving and pay­
ing to them fraudulent claims, was perpetrated to effect tbe 
object of the conspiracy. IIis fraud has become the fraud 
of all, and in the commission of said fraud, lie had been 
aided and abetted by the accused, and has been counselled 
and procured by accused to commit it.

In Taschercau’s Criminal Code, under section (11, the fol­
lowing authorities arc cited :

“The procurement (to commit an offence) may lie direct, 
by hire, counsel, command, or conspiracy.” 2 Hawkins, 
ch. 29, s. 16.

“ There is participation in tbe offence committed bv one, 
il several persons combine for an unlawful purpose to be 
carried into effect by unlawful means.

There must also be a participation in the act. for although 
a man be present whilst a felony is committed, if he take no 
part in it, and does not act in concert with those who com­
mitted it, he will not he a principal in the second degree 
merely because he did not endeavour to prevent the felony
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or apprehend the felon.” 1 Hale 43!), Taschereau’* Code.
“So n participation, the result of a concerted design to 

eonmiit a specific offence is sufficient to constitute a principal 
in the second degree.”

Taschereatt’s Code, pages 32-33.
“ So likewise, if several persons combined for an unlaw­

ful purpose to be carried into effect by unlawful means. 
Taschercau’s Code, page 33, citing Foster 351-352.

“ An accessory before the fact is lie who being absent at 
the time of the felony committed doth yet procure, counsel, 
command, or abet another to commit a felony.” 1 Hale 615.

“ Conspiracy is solicitation, and something more.” 1 
Bishop Criminal Law, see 767-762.

“ Participation simply means being accessory liefore the 
fact,” Archbold, 284-285, 22ml edition.

“ 1.—(A.) An aider and abettor may he tried as a prin­
cipal.

(B). The evidence is such a case must show a common 
criminal intent with the principal and an actual or construc­
tive participation in the commission of the offence.”

Bogina vs Graham, 2 Canadian Criminal Cases, 388, 
Ouimet, J.

These authorities, and section 61 cited, make it evident 
that the accused by their corrupt agreement with Carter, 
became parties to all the acts done by him (Carter) in order 
to effect the object of the conspiracy, and which arc punish­
able, and conspiracy lining solicitation and procurement, be­
sides section 61, paragraph 2 of section 62 also make the c in­
spirators parties to the offences committed by one of their 
number.

Now, is fraud an extraditable crime!
Extradition takes place for the fraud committed by the 

different persons mentioned in clause 4 of the Treaty, which 
is in these terms:

Section 4.—“ Fraud by a bailee, banker, agent, factor 
trustee, or director, or member, or officer of any company, 
made criminal bv the laws of both countries.”
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Garter was an agent and trustee of the United States, liy 
his appointment he had authority to act and bind his princi­
pal, the Government of tin- United States, and by section 
1153 of the Bevised Statutes of the United States, which 
is proven, the duties arc imposed U|Htn an engineer engaged 
as he was, nlsmt the construction of any public work, to 
disburse moneys applicable to the same, etc. It formed 
]«irt of his duties to pay over to contractors the moneys 
entrusted to him by the Government of the United States 
for this object, and any fraud committed by him in his 
official capacity was fraud by an agent and trustee.

But is the fraud and breach of trust committed by Carter 
punishable by the laws of both countries, a condition which 
is required bv section 4 of the Treaty, to make it extradit­
able ?

We have seen that such a fraud and breach of trust 
would be punished in Canada by section 135 of our Criminal 
Code. It would also, it seems, la1 the object of criminal 
prosecution under the common law. The following 
authorities show this:

“ Fraud: To la* flu1 object of criminal prosecution mint 
be of that, kind which is in its nature calculated to defraud 
numbers, as false wights, or measures, fa be tokens, or where 
there is a conspiracy,” ]*>r Lord Mansfield, li. vs Wheatley, 
2 Bur. 1125. Taschereau's Code, Sect. 305, Note.

•' Bussell on Crimes, under the caption, “Cheats and 
Frauds at, Common Law,” we rend : “ Those cheats which 
are levelled against the public justice of the Kingdom are 
indictable at common law.”

Bussell on Crimes, p. 454 ffith Ed.. Vol. 2V
V <1 under the same head, he says: “ In some cases, the 

rendering of false accounts and fraud practised bv persons 
in official situations, have been deemed so affecting the 
publie as to be indictable, thus where two persons were in­
dicted for enabling persons to pass their accounts with the 
pay office, in such a way as to enable them to defraud the 
Government, and it was objected that it was only a private 

6
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mutter of account, and not indictable, the Court held other­
wise, as it related to the public revenue. And instances 
appear in the books of indictments against overseers of the 
poor for refusing to account, and for rendering false 
accounts.”

1 Russel on Crimes, p. 422.
2 XVoolrych, Criminal Law, p. 611.
a Chitty Criminal Law, p. 701. z
In 2 Russell on Crimes, 457-456, Mr. Russell cites a case 

where two persons were jointly indicted for corruptly bar­
gaining and selling to a third person a lot of wine under 
certain false representations, and Mr. Russell says, at page 
462, “ Upon this case considerable doubts were entertained, 
but it seems that ultimately judgment was given for the 
Crown, and that the true ground of such judgment was 
that it was a cast* of conspiracy.” See also 2 East P.C., chap. 
IS, sec. 2 and 6, pp. SI7, 82.1-4.

“ Where two agree to carry it (a conspiracy) into effect, 
thle very plot is an act itself, and the act of each of the 
thirties, promise against promise, actus contra actum, cap­
able of lieing enforced if lawful, is punishable if for a 
criminal object, or for the use of criminal means.”

Archbold Cr. P. and P„ 22nd Ed., page 120!). Will™ ,1. 
in Mulcahy vs. R., Law Reports, 1 ILL. .100-317. Bishop 
Cr. Prae., sec. 205, 200.

Mr. Archbold says: “ Many of the decisions that a con­
spiracy to cheat or defraud is indictable turn on facts which 
proved that the cheat or fraud was itself indictable at com­
mon law or by statute.”

Archbold Cr. P. ami P., p. 1211.
“ And if the parties conspire to obtain money by false 

pretences of existing facts it seems to be no objection to 
the indictment for conspiracy that the money was to be 
obtained through the medium of a contract.” Arch. Cr., 
I*, and P., p. 1211.

In the United States, the offences committed by Carter 
were punished by provisions of the Federal statutory law,
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States, thley were not crimes at common law. Besides, 
there is not in the Federal law any offence spocificially 
known by the name of fraud. Carter was prosecuted for 
conspiracy to defraud, and causing false and fraudulent 
claims to la- made for his approval and payment under sec­
tions 54118 and 5440 which have been already cited.

The Supreme Clourt of the United States, the highest 
body to interpret the law in that country, in the ease of 
( after vs. Met iaughry, on a writ of liahv/is corpus for the 
relcasc of Captain Carter, p. 211 of tin- report of this case, 
has declared that conviction on charges of conspiracy by 
Carter to defraud the United States, and of causing false and 
fraudulent (daims to be made for approval and payment bv 
him, was conviction of “fraud.” This opinion shows that 
fraud is punished as such by the laws of tin- United States.

The fraud committed by Carter being made criminal by 
the laws of both countries, a condition exacted by section 4 
of the Treaty, it follows that the fraud of Carter constitutes 
an extradition crime.

It is true that the crime of fraud and breach of trust so 
committed by Carter does not bear the s|x-eific name of 
fraud, under the law of the United States a|ipli<-abl< to it, 
as it does under our law, but there is alisolute identity in 
substance between the offence of fraud by a public officer 
under our law, and the offence put to the charge of Carter 
and punished as fraud by the laws of the United States, ns 
declared by the Supreme Court of the United States, and 
the same evidence is required in support in With instances. 
It is not the name of the offence that is punished, it is the 
overt act that, is made criminal, the transaction itself.

This reasonable and beneficial principle has Wvn affirmed 
by the Supreme Court, of the United Slates in the case of 
Wright vs. Henkel, 100, U.S. ["S').

“ Absolute identity is not required. The essential 
character of the transaction is the same, and made criminal
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by both statutes (The English and the United States 
statutes).

To like effect was the decision of the Queen's Bench 
Division in Bellcncontre's case (lKlll) under the Treaty with 
France under a similar clause providing for extradition for 
fraud by a bailee, banker, agent, factor, or trustee.

The French warrant charged the defendant, a Notary, 
with having embezzled or misappropriated to the injury of 
a certain ]>ers<m named, a certain specified sum of money 
delivered to him, in his capacity of Notary. There were a 
numl>er of such transactions charged in the warrant.

In the warrant issued by the English magistrate, the 
charge is stated that the defendant is accused of the com­
mission of the crime of Fraud by a bailee within the juris­
diction of the French Republic.

The final commitment of the Magistrate was for the crimes 
of “ Fraud bv a bailee and frauds as an agent ” within the 
jurisdiction of the French Republic.

In re Bellencontre, 2 Law Reports, Q.B. (1801), p. 122. 
In that ease the ]>ortion of the French statute held applicable 
was as follows:

“ Whoever shall have embezzled or misappropriates! to 
the injury of the owner, possessors, or holders, any effects, 
money, etc., which shall have Wen delivered to him only in 
right of hire or deposit .... upon the condition 
. . . . to employ them for a specific purpose, will be
punished.”

The English statute applicable was ns follows (p. 126):
“ Whoever being .... attorney or agent and 

being intrusted .... with the property of any other 
person for safe custody shall, with intent to defraud . . .
in any manner convert or appropriate the same or any part 
thereof to or for his own use or benefit, or the use or benefit 
of any person other than the person by whom he was so 
entrusted, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, etc.”

It was held that these statutes came within the class of 
“Fraud by a bailee or agent” and the commitment was 
sustained.
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Ami tin- Court held (p. 136) in that ca-e. that although 
the English statutes did not provide for the punishment of 
bailees, as such, that where the eiidrnn showed fraud by a 
bailee, who was also an agent, it was sufficient to bring it 
within the tenus of the English Statute as to misappro­
priation by attorneys or agents above quoted.

And the Court further say (p. 139) : „
“ Embezzlement, means nothing more l.or less than fraudu­

lent misappropriation, and although it is called emliezzlement 
by a clerk or sen-ant, because it is only in that case it is 
made punishable under llwl name, vet the thing actually 
exists in other cases than those of a clerk or servant, and 
is made punishable in the case of a banker, merchant, factor, 
or agent by those sections of the Act of 1 Sfifi, t , which I 
have referred."

And the Court, after stating that the French statute was 
much broader than the English statute, and punished some 
acts which the English Statute did not, say fp. 138) :

“We have therefore to see whether the fartx laid More 
tho magistrate justified him in coming to the conclusion that 
there was a prima facie case made out of an offence against
the English law......... or what would be a crime bv English
law.”

To like effect Ex-Partc Pint, 15 Cox’s Criminal Cases 
(Q.B.D.) iOH.

And in the case of Arton, who A- the difficulty was greater, 
because there was not only a difference in the names of the 
offences in both laws, but there was also a difference in the 
two versions of the Treaty (the French and English). I-ord 
Hussel of Killowen, in rendering judgment in this case, 
said:

“ Evidence of the crime of falsification of accounts accord­
ing to English law not amounting to forgetw according to 
that law, and within the 18th head of Art. 3 of the treaty 
(English version) ; evidence also, that tho crime of falsifica­
tion is a crime according to French law, ranging itself, ac-
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cording to that law, under the head of forgery and within 
head - of Art.. It of the treaty (r rench version). Why, tlien, 
is it not. to be regarded as an extradition crime? I see no 
valid reason. English law, as I have said, treats some acts 
of falsification of accounts as forgery, lmt does not treat all 
of them as such. The French law on the other hand ( as we 
must conclude, on the evidence of fact before us) treats such 
falsification of accounts as alleged in this ease as forgery, 
within Art. 147 of the Code Penal, la extradition to lie 
refused in respect of acts covered liy the treaty, ami gravely 
criminal according to the law of both countries, because in 
the particular case the falsification of accounts is not forgery 
according to English law, hut falls under the head according 
to French law? / lliink not. To decide so would Ik- to hinder 
the working and narrow the operation of most, salutary 
international arrangements. It seems to me, therefore, that, 
all the conditions which I have mentioned have in this case 
been fulfilled. In my judgment these 1 realies ought to re­
ceive liberal interpretation, which means no more than that 
they should receive their true construction according to their 
language, object, and intent. 1 know no head of the French 
law for which an exact equivalent is to Is- found in the law 
of England. The English and French texts of the treaty 
are not translations of one another. They are different ver­
sions, hut. versions which on the whole arc- in substantial 
agreement. We are here dealing with a crime alleged to 
have lieen committed against the law of France»; and if we 
find, as I hold that we do, that such a crime is a crime against 
the law of both countries, and is, in substance, to lie fourni in 
each version of the treatV, although under different, heads, 
we are bound to give effect to the claim for extradition.”

The same principle has lieen recognized by tin' late Judge 
Wurtclc in Ex-parte Seitz, 3 Can. Cr. Cas. 127.

And in re E. II. Martin, 33 L.C.J. 253, it was held: “That 
though the offences were known in the State of Minnesota 
and in Canada by different names, nevertheless the same 
facia constituted and the same evidence would prove, a crime 
in each country and the name was immaterial.”
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In re Regina vs Dix ( 1 ^ T.L.R. 2:\ 1 ) the accused was 
charges! with larceny by cmliez/demem awarding t,, Ameri­
can law. It was hold that : “As the evidence showed fraud 
by a baiilce, banker etc., under section > 1 of the Larcenv 
Act, an offence within the Treaty, the accused could l»e extra 
dited". In Ut‘g vs Kohn ( L.d. Supp. 1ÎMM), p. I7d ) the re- 
cjuisition and original warrant was for false pretences. The 
magistrate altered the charge in the warrant of commitment 
to fraud bv an agent, and larceny as a bailee. According to 
German law what the prisoner was said to have done was 
obtaining goods by false pretences, but it was not so accord­
ing to English law, hut was an offence of another kind. The 
act was the same, but it was called by a different name in 
each county. The magistrate simply changed the description 
of the offence into the description under which the act alleged 
was known in English law. If that could not be done, extra­
dition treaties would be of no value. (Grantham, J.)

PARTICIPATION IN FRAUD.

As I have said before, under our law the accused would be 
parties by their conspiracy with Garter to the offence of 
fraud and breach of trust committed by Carter, and punisha­
ble as principals.

Now, would they In* punishable under the laws of the 
United States for their participation in the fraud and breach 
of trust, committed by Carter, by conspiring to defraud the 
United States, and causing false and fraudulent claims to 
be presented to him for and payment, ?

The offences contemplated by sections olds and 5440 are 
not, declared to be felonies. They are misdemeanors. For 
having violated them Carter was convicted of “fraud’. M|r. 
Erwin for the prosecution, testifies that aiders and abettors, 
counsellors and procurers in misdemeanors are punishable as 
principals in the United States. In support of this affirma­
tion the following authorities and decisions have been cited : 
U. S. vs Snvder 14 Federal Reporter 554, where it is stated 
“The offence is a statutory misdemeanor and it is well set-

2547
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tied I lint all who aid, abet, procure or adriae the commission 
of n misdemeanor are guilty as principals.”

1 Russell on Crimes !lth ed., p. 1001.
“Anil tliis is the rule whether the misdemeanor is created 

by statute or by the common law”. U. S. vs Mills, 7 
Peters 138.

“When Congress creates a statutory misdemeanor we 
must assume that, it is dono with the above well setthsl rules 
of law in view, and if so with the intent that aiders and 
abettors as well us the actual doors of a crime may lie pun­
ished under it. Although the defendant Bertham not living 
postmaster was incapable of living the principal actor in the 
commission of the crime, he may nevertheless be held to be 
an aider, procurer and abettor, and therefore in law a prin­
cipal.”,V.8. vs Snyder, 14 Fed. Hep. 554.

Mr. Hose and Mr. Lindsay, two exerts in law, examined 
bv the defence, have given on this point opinions contrary 
to that of Mr. Krwin, hut no authorities were cited by them 
m support. I must accept the theory of the prosecution that 
participation by accused in the fraud committed by Carter 
is punished by the law of the United States, because, first, 
the evidence is conflicting, and second, because it is supported 
by authority.

Section 10 of the Treaty says: “ Extradition is also to take 
place for participation in any of the crimes mentioned in this 
convention, or in the aforesaid tenth article, provided such 
participation Is* punishable by the laws of Ixitli countries.

I hold that by their conspiracy, accused have participated 
in the overt acts done by Carter in furtherance of the con­
spiracy, and charged as misdemeanors, namely, in Ilia offence 
of fraud as agent and trustee, and as the offenee of fraud by 
an agent and trustee is mentioned in the Treaty and is pun­
ished by the laws of Imth countries, anil tin* participation 
therein is also punished by the laws of both countries, and 
is made a ground for extradition by section 10 of the Treaty, 
the accused would be liable to extradition on this ground, if 
all other conditions for an extradition have been fulfilled.



PARTICIPATION* IX I'.MKKZZI.KMEXT.

Tin* iwoikI ground of tl e United State- for demanding tin* 
extradition of tin* licensed i- tlmt they participated in the 
embezzlement eoimnitted h Olwrlin XI. Carter by to) soli­
citing, counselling, moving, aiding and procuring said Olier- 
1 iti M. Carter, the officer, agent and trustee intrusted with 
said public money of the I’nited States knowingly to apply 
the same to a pur|mse not prescribed hv law, to wit, to the 
payment of fraudulent claims against the Government of the 
United States, to the amount of $575,74i).!W).

(6) By knowingly having applied the said sum of $575,- 
74!hflO of the public money of the said United States received 
by them from said Olierlin M. Carter, as such officer, agent, 
and trustee knowing the same to have been fraudulently ob­
tained bv said Carter, to the payment of fraudulent claims 
against the Government of the United States, to the amount 
of $.">7.">,7411.tut bv them caused to lie presented to said Olier- 
lin XI. Carter for approval and payment by him as such 
officer, agent, and trustee, that being an application of said 
money tor a purpose not preserilied by law.

On July tltli, 1 sn7. Carter paid to licensed in two eheipies, 
the sum of $575,740.1)0 on claims which he knew to lie false, 
and fraudulent, which claims were presented by the accused.

This payment of Carter to accused was an overt act result­
ing, and in furtherance of the corrupt agreement existing 
between them to defraud the United States.

Carter was prosecuted for having emliezzled this sum of 
money, and convicted under section 54ss of the Revised 
Statutes of the United States already cited.

This money had Is-en entrusted to Carter by the United 
States, upon his demand, and in his official capacity, for the 
purpose of paying just claims due hv the United States. To 
the full knowledge of Carter this money was not due to the 
accused, who had not given the United States the work, ma­
terial, labour, and ability contracted for. Their claims were 
fraudulent, and were fraudulently approved by Carter, and
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there is no doubt in my mind that he was guilty of emliezzle- 
ment aeeording to section f>488 of the Revised Statutes of 
the l'nited States.

The distinction lietween larceny and embezzlement has 
been done away with by our Criminal (Vale, and at present 
former larceny ami cmliezzlement an* inelude<l in the generic 
term of “ theft. A study of the offence known as embezzle­
ment, before the (’ode, does not convince me that the embez­
zlement of Carter under the United State* law would have 
constituted the crime of embezzlement according to our law 
before the Code wa* passed. Then embezzlement was the un­
lawful appropriation to hi* own use by a servant* or clerk, 
or public officer, «if money or chattels received by him for
and on account of his master or employer.............. It differs
from larceny by clerks, or servants, or public officers, iu this 
respect, to <unite from Harris, “ Kmbezzlcmcnt is committed 
in respect of property which is not at the time in the actual 
possession of the owner, whilst in larceny it is. An example 
will illustrate the distinction. A clerk receives twenty 
pounds from a person in payment for some goods sold hv his 
master. He at once puts it in hi* pocket, appropriating it 
to his own use. This is embezzlement. The clerk appro­
priates to his own use twenty pounds, which ho takes from 
the till. This is larceny (Harris, page 220).

See also case cited by Archbohl, page 400, 21st edition, 
under the title “ Larceny” (4thlv). A* t<> cases (<*f lar­
ceny) where, although there is a delivery of the goods by the 
owner, yet the possession in law remains in him.

And Harris, page 2<>r», under the same title.
This is not the case with Carter. The money that he re­

ceived from the Treasurer of the United States was in the 
possession of the1 Government of the United States, and by 
its changing of hands this money did not cease to In* still in 
the legal and constructive possession of the Government. It 
was only for the time being in the custody of Carter, lie 
was the servant «if the Government and the legal ]>osscssion 
remained with the Government, for, as our criminal code
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Bays (k) Having in one's possession includes not only having 
in one’s personal possession, hut also knowingly i 1 ) having 
m the actual possession or custody of any other person ( ( *rim- 
inal ( ’ode, 1HÎI2, Sect. 1$).

Regina vs Graham, l.‘$ Cox. .“>7.
Re Parsons, 10 (’ox, 408.
And so long as this money was not given to accused, Carter 

was possessing for the C ni ted States.
Secti a .‘105, Criminal Code, defines theft :

I heft or stealing i< the act of fraudulently and without 
colour of right taking, or fraudulently and without colour 
of right converting to the use of any person anything capable 
of lieing stolen, with intent (a) to deprive the owner, or any 
person having any special property or interest therein, tem­
porarily or absolutely of such tiling or of such property or 
interest.

2.—The taking or conversion may lie fraudulent, although 
effected without secrecy or attempt at concealment.

•*$.— It is immaterial whether the thing converted was 
taken for the purpose of conversion or whether it was at the 
time of the conversion in the lawful pression of the person 
converting.”

According to my interpretation of the law and my appre­
ciation of the transaction under examination, this transac­
tion of Carter would not have constituted ettiliezzlement un­
der our former criminal law hut would then have lieen lar­
ceny, and would now he theft l*v a public officer, punished 
by section 111U (>) of our Criminal Code.

dV.t.—Every one is guilty of an indictable offence and 
liable to fourteen years imprisonment, who:

(r) Being employed in the service of 11 i- Majesty, or of 
the Government of Canada or the Government of any Pro­
vince of Canada, or of any municipality steals anything in 
his possession by virtue of his employment, and al-o punish­
able at common law.

To constitute one guilty of theft ii i- not necessary that 
the thief should appropriate or convert the thing stolen to
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his own uhc, Imt converting to the use of any ]ierson is suffi- 
cieut So if a servant without authority gives away to an­
other person the pro|x-rty of liis master, he is guilty of theft.

“ An unauthorized gift by the servant of Ills master's 
goods is as much a felony as if he sold or pawned them,” 
Beg. vs. W hite, 0 C. and P. ."144. Arehliold, under the 
subject already referred to.

In the present ease, though there are good reasons to 
presume that Carter got his slum- of the money so fraudu­
lently given by him to accused, whether lie did or not is 
immaterial for the appreciation of his net.

Theft and embezzlement are both extradition crimes by 
Section 3 of the Treaty, and are punished by the laws of 
both countries, and by section 10, extradition is to take 
place for participation in these Crimea, provided such partici­
pation lie punishable by the laws of both countries.

The accused, bv their conspiracy with Harter, have partici­
pated in the crime of embezzlement (theft, under our law) 
committed by him, and this participation would lie punish­
able here under Section 01 and 02 of the Criminal Code.

Embezzlement under the laws of the Fnited States is a 
statutory misdemeanour, and aiders, counsellors, procurers 
and abettors, in misdemeanors as has been seen before, are 
puni-died as principals.

Besides, it seems ns if the participation of the accused 
therein was directly and specifically punished by Section 
S407. Tlevised Statutes of the Fnited States:

•ri407: “Every banker, broker, or other person not an 
authorized depositary of public moneys, who knowingly 
receives from any disbursing officer, or collector of internal 
revenue, or other agent of the Fnited States, any public 
money on deposit, nr bv way of loan or accommodation, 
with or without interest, or otherwise than in payment, of a 
debt against the Fnited States, or who uses, transfers, con­
verts, appropriates, or applies any portion of the public 
money for any purpose not preserilied by law, and every 
president, cashier, teller, director, or other officer of any
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hank or Iwnking asswiation who violates any of th«- pro­
vision* of tlii» Mvtiou, i- guilty of an act of embezzlement 
of tin1 public money so <|< po-ite.l, loaned, transferred. used, 
converted, appropriait<1, or ap|)liecl, and -b ill be punished 
a- pri-crilied in -cetion tiftv-four Inmdriil ami edghtv- 
eigldt.”

This section is the counterpart of section Ô4SS, which i- 
the emliezzlement section.

On this other grotiiul also, ......... . to await sur­
render would be grantcil, provided all other conditions for 
extradition would have been complied with.

TIECKIVIXO.

The extradition of the accused i.- lastly -ought for the
reason that they are accused of ......iving from Carter money
fraudulently obtained, to wit, the $070,7 In.no paid over to 
them by Carter on July Gth, 1 sil7, knowing the same to 
have been stolen.

This reason docs not appear to have lient set in the 
information and complaint us a special cutt-e for asking the 
extradition of the accused. The charge, though, is made 
in sulistancc, and the fraudulent payment by Carter of this 
money, and it* acceptance by the accused, are mentioned 
as overt acts of the conspiracy. The supplementary infor­
mation and complaint made in this case, after the judgment 
of the Privy Council, for a warrant to re-arrest the accused, 
contained a count for the fraudulent receiving of thi- money, 
which was mentioned in tin - new warrant of arrest, ami at 
the- argument Counsed for the- prosecution declares! that they 
were asking extrailitiein oti the gmnnil of fraudulent reeciv- 
ing also. It is tlm prnetiec in Canada for magistrates hold­
ing preliminary investigations, to esimmit for all the offemces 
proven by the evidence adelnessl, whethe r tlmse otTemees lire 
mentioneel in the information eir not, and even for totally' 
elifferent offences, omitting that or those mentmnid in the 
information.
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There is no good reason why this should not be done in 
extradition eases, as the rules that govern the investigating 
magistrate, govern the extradition etnnmisâioner. The facts 
are to lie found in the evidence, and in an extradition cuso 
the .fudge hears the ease in the same manner as nearlv as 
may lie, as if the fugitive was brought before a justice of 
the peace charged with an indictable offence eommifti I in 
Otinada. I lie < ourt of King's Ileneh has even found that 
this dis|iosition id" the Kxtradition Act gives piwer to admit 
to liail. (See Criminal Code, 5ÏH and 50(1.)

1 ho obtaining of the money by the aecnsnl through 
(farter was the crowning act of the corrupt combination 
existing lietwecn the accused and Carter. Accused knew 
as well as Carter that this money was not due to them by 
the I nited States, and that Carter, in passing it to them, 
wus stealing from his employer, that according to the wording 
of the I nited State- Statute lie was “fraudulently applying 
the moneys of the 1'nited States to an object not prescribed 
by law," and consequently was embezzling (stealing) the 
same.

I he act of receiving stolen property, knowing it to have 
b. en stolen, is punishable as a substantive offence by section 
111 and .‘lid Criminal (Asie, 1 sp2, and at common law the 
receiver can also be punished as participator in the theft.

We find in Archhohl, 51st Edition, page 401, the follow­
ing decision: “And where a third party receive- go™ Is from 
a servant, under colour of a pretended -ale, knowing that 
the servant has no authority to sell them, and i-, in fact, 
defrauding his master, this i- larceny in both." Keg. v. 
Ilombv, 1 C and K, p. dlttl.

The offence of receiving is also punished by the Imperial 
State 54 and 55 Viet.. (Imp. !Mi, Larceny Act, see. 01.

In the I'nitcd States it is punished by Section 5, Act of 
1875, Supplement Revised Statutes 1’nited State-, p. SO, 
which is in the following words;

“ I hat if any person -hall receive, conceal, or aid in con­
cealing, or have, or retain in his possession with intent to
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convert to his own use or gain, any money, property, record, 
voucher or valuable thing whatever, of the Moneys, goods, 
chattels, records, or property of the Cubed States, which 
has theretofore been embezzled, stolen, or purloined from 
the l ni ted States, by any other jmtsou, knowing the suite 
to have been so embezzled, stolen, or purloined, such |>cr- 
son shall, on conviction before the (*irenit or district Court 
of the l ni tod States, in the district wherein he may have 
such property, be punished bv a tine not « xeccding five 
thousand dollars, or imprisonment at hard labour in the 
penitentiary not exceeding five years, one or both, at the 
discretion of tin* Court before which he shall In* convicted.

“ And such receiver may be tried cither before or after 
the conviction of the principal felon, but if the party has 
been convicted, then the judgment against him shall 1st 
conclusive evidence in the prosecution against such receiver 
that the property of the I'nitcd State* therein described 
has been embezzled, stolen, or purloined.”

Section .'1 of tin* Treaty provides that extradition takes 
place for: “ Embezzlement, larceny, receiving any money, 
valuable security or other property, knowing the same to 
' ave been embezzled, stolen or fraudulently obtained.”

On this ground of receiving stolon property, I am of 
opinion that extradition would be allowed, providing all 
other conditions for extradition had been fulfilled.

PTtKVlOCK KKOnsiTlOX CXXKCKSSATtY.

Objection has been raised to the right of the prosecution 
to n comm it al for surrender for the reason that ,no com- 
plaints have been proven to have been made and no warrants 
issued in the demanding country for the arrest of the accused 
for the offences described in the complaint, and evidence 
before me. No authorities have been cited in support of 
this pretension.

Whether or not there is a warrant of arrest issued in 
the 1 Tilted States for the same offences that are under 
investicration is no concern of mine.
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The Treaty and our Extradition Act, Section IS, do not 
require this pre-existing < " The Privy Oouneil lias
declared in its judgment in this ease, that original prosecu­
tion could lie instituted in tlie surrendering eoutii *y, and 
then' are many decisions upon this point contrary to the 
pretension of the defence. And for the Commissioner to 
hare jurisdiction in an extradition matter it is not necessary 
that it he proved that a requisition for surrender has lieen 
previously made to the proper authorities. I have decided 
it myself in many eases, and lately in the Lorenz case, where 
flit' same objection was raised.

I see no good reason why I should change mv opinion upon 
this point.

In re Hoke, IS R.L., p. Oil Q.B. it was decided that it. is 
not neeessaiy in proceedings for a eommital for extradition to 
prove a demand for the fugitive from the foreign govern­
ment..

The sanii' decision in re Garhut, il Ontario Re.rorts 463; 
in re Caldwell, B Ont., P.R. il7; also in re Lnzier, 8 Can­
adian Criminal Cases, p. 107; in re Burley, L.J., N.S., 84; 
and in re Worms, 7 R.L 81!t, C.li. 1876.

It it» proven that there are against the accused in the 
United States indictments for conspiracy with Carter to de­
fraud the United States hut this fact does not prevent the 
United States from demanding their extradition for ntliet 
causes.

It was decided in ex parte DeBaum, M.L.R., 4 Q.B., 145, 
1888, that “ the fact that an indictment for emliezzlemcnt 
has lieen found against the accused in the State from which 
he fled, does not prevent a demand living for his surrender 
for forgery.”

Section lit of the Extradition Act gives to the demanding 
country two months after the decision on the writ of haheit* 
rorpun if one has lieen granted, to take steps to have the fugi­
tive surrendered and conveyed out of C "a. That this is 
so was declared hv Chief Justice Dorion in the lloke case, 
15 R.L. 105,

8

2769
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In the Lorenz ease, just referns I to, the inquisition for 
surrender was only made after eommilal, and it was found 
to have been made in due tiiui. si nee surrender was ordered.

I think there is nothing in til's ohjeetion.

OBJECTION' TO THE ADMISSIBILITY OF 
FOREKiX EVIDENCE.

A more serious objection raised by the defence is the one 
relut in" to the legality of the written evidence put 1H ‘fore 
me by the prosecution.

Section 10 of the Extradition Act states: ‘MO.—Dep»i- 
tions taken out of CVuiada— \\ lien to he deemed authen­
ticated :

I)e|)ositions or statements taken in a foreign state on oath, 
or on affirmation, where affirmation is allowed by the law of 
the stale, and copies of such depositions or statements, and 
foreign certificates of or judicial documents staling the far 
of conviction may, if duly authenticated, lie received in evid- 
denoo in proceedings under this Act: l\ Such papa's shall 
lw dmned duly uuihenlieale I if authenticated in manner 
provided, for the time I wing by law, or if am lient "cate I as 
follows :

(n) If the warrant pnrpirt- to !«• signed hv or the certi­
ficate purports to he eertitied hv or the depositions or state­
ments, or the copies then of, pnrpirt to lie certified to lie the 
originals or true copies, by a judge, magistrate, or officer of 
the foreign state ;

(6) And if the papers are authenticated by the oath or 
affirmation of some witness, or b\ being sealed with the offi­
cial seal of the Minister of Justice, or some minister of the 
foreign state, or of a colony, dop ndency, or constituent part 
of the foreign state: of which seal the judge shall take judi­
cial notice without proof."

The defence contends that the documents and papers tiled 
by the prosecution as foreign evidence are not copies of 
depositions or statements on oath, they not lieing legally 
depositions or statements on oath in the 1 nited States. 1 s'­

il
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cause the originals of thine so callisl depositions or statements 
were not read over to the witnesses nor sights! bv them. It 
st ems to me that 1 have not to enquire whether the originals 
are or are not depositions or statements on oath in the United 
States, so as to Is- taken cognizance of ami be given legal 
effect to by the tribunals of the Unitod States, but whether 
the documents file* I as copies of d<-] sis it ions or statements on 
oath are such as to In1 received in Canada for the purpoeea ot 
this investigation. If ever they are offered to lie used ns 
depositions in the United States, then I suppose, it will be 
time for the competent, authority to enquire whether can 
lie legally done or not.

The originals of these depositions appear to have been 
taken by shorthand, in a regular judicial proceeding had lic- 
fore United States Commissioner Shields, ft. me removal of 
accused to Georgia, in the, presence of the accused, who were 
represented by two of the leading members of the New York 
liar, ami who cross-examined the witness, and who made no 
objection whatever to the manner in which the depositions 
were taken. This is exactly the manner in which depositions 
are legally taken in preliminary investigations here, and 
even in the present, case the depositions taken before me went 
taken ini this manner, without objection on the part of the 
accused. The stenographer who t««>k the notes of the foreign 
evidence swore that his transcript of those notes was correct, 
and Commissioner Shields, an officer qualified to administer 
oaths and examine witnesses, certifies that the documents 
filed are true copies of these dc|>ositiotis.

The taking of evidence in extradition cases by shorthand 
has been recognized as legal. In re Garlmt 21 tint. Reports, 
170, 182, 183.

Neither the Treaty nor the Extradition Act requires, 
though, that these depositions or statements lie taken a.....ril­
ing to the requirements of special statutes of the foreign 
countries, so ns to be given legal effect before the courts of 
justice of the foreign country. They are not intended to lie 
used before the courts of justice of a foreign co intrv, and il 
would not be reasonable to exact the conditions that would
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make them legal before these courts of justice of the Fnited 
States, which would lie unnecessary. The only condition ini 
posed by section 10 for depwitions or statements taken in a 
foreign country is that they lie taken on oath, and duly au­
thenticated, which inis Ipcen done here.

For their admissibility it is the law of the .....utrv where
these dc|Hisifnuis or statements are offered that is to be fol­
lowed. See The New International Knevt' " , Vol. 5,
I’age 'l'l', on this question under the word “ I tiqiosition " as 
follows :—

“Deposition.—The test ..... . if a witness legally taken and
committed to writing, by, or . the presence of a judge, re 
ferce, commissioner, notary public, or other dulv qu lilied 
official |K>rson. It is usually taken by virtue of a commi­
sion, or letters rogatory (q.v.) issuing out of the court in 
which the action is pending, or which has jurisdiction of the 
subject matter, if taken before trial.

The questions may lie asked orally or may be submitted 
to the witness in the form of written interrogatories. The 
legal representatives of all parties to the action or proceed- 
ing are entitled to be present, and to cross-examine the wit­
ness, or submit cross-interrogatories to lie answered. If the 
competency of the witnesses or the admissibility of the ques­
tions or answers is objected to, the objection must Is- stated 
to the court or officer taking the deposition, and he may either 
rule on the question at once, noting the objection, ruling and 
exception, or reserve it for the opinion of the court from 
which the commission issued.

The laws of the State having jurisdiction of the litigation 
in which the evidence is to lie used regulate the manner of 
taking the testimony, irre-pevtive of the jurisdiction where 
it is taken. The competency and admissibility of the testi­
mony arc determined by the rules of evidence in force where 
it is offered in court. Depositions are used in courts, and 
they may be ordered taken where witnesses are out of the 
jurisdiction, or, if within the State, if they art" very old and 
intirm or in feeble health, in order to perpetuate their testi-
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